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ABOUT SEM
AR IRE

We are a renowned and established electrical and mechanical (‘E&M”)
engineering works contractor in Macau and Hong Kong with our
focus on providing electrical-related E&M engineering works.

OUR PROFILE

Ready System Engineering Limited (“Ready System (Macau)”) was
founded in 2006. Upon group reorganisation in 2015, Ready System
(Macau) become a wholly owned subsidiary of SEM Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

During the year ended 31 December 2023 (“Year 2023” or the “Year”),
the Group has continued its strategy of diversifying its market risks
and uncertainties by continuing to engage projects with scope of our
E&M engineering works in Hong Kong segment through its wholly
owned subsidiary, SEM Resources Limited (“SEM Resources”).

The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted of supply,
installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new and existing
buildings in the projects of commercial and residential development,
hotel development, casino development, hotel renovation and sports
venue in Macau and Hong Kong.
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ABOUT SEM

REI Y TR
OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRERET

2006 Ready System (Macau) was incorporated in Macau on 15 May 2006.
TERTRE RERK (RPN ZSERELR+EBATRPIGEMAIL-

approximately MOP22.2 million.

x K x

* m *
Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first casino project with a total contract sum of k
SERG (RF) BRE—(ERMLIBEE BN HAR22 288 RM T

2007 Ready System (Macau) provided electrical engineering works in a mixed use development
“EZLHF  (hotel and service apartments) project with a total contract sum of approximately MOP118.6
million.

2EZRG (RF) m—EGEERRNER (BERRBAAE) BEERMHUKETLR 85
HEEENRI18.6EREM T

Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first residential apartment project with a total contract H

sum of approximately MOP34.8 million.
2ERMK (R ERE—EFEABEE  Ba0SENA34.8EEREMT

2008 The annual revenue of our Group achieved approximately MOP70.0 million.
“EENEFE FEEBRFEWGAORT0.0BE R T
2015 Ready System (Macau) duly registered with The Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of

£ —H%F Macau as a registered contractor for execution of construction works.
IERS (RFY) IORPILH T HER B EXN S LA ETERTRENEMARER-

Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to install and supply electrical system in a
residential and commercial development project at Taipa, Macau with the initial contract sum
of approximately MOP138.7 million.

2ERG (R BE—EEB WRMKFNEEREEREREECERERER R4
TEENEENA138.7TEEREMT

2016 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to provide maintenance, supply and installation
“ZEF—7RHF of fitting out, electrical, mechanical ventilation and air conditioning and plumbing works in
a hotel renovation project at Avenida da Amizade, Macau with the initial contract sum of
approximately MOP120.6 million. ﬁ
DERG (RPY) BER—EEE  HREMKAASE—EOEHHERREEE - BR %
MBRREAUREEIENRE HERLZE  YIBEHOFENR12068REM T

2017 The annual revenue of our Group first achieved over MOP200.0 million.

“Z2—tF FEEERERFENRZE200.08EHEM T

2019 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a hotel

“ZE—H%F development project at Lago Nam Van, Macau with the initial contract sum of approximately *

MOP168.8 million (included provisional sum of approximately MOP13.6 million).
PERG RPN BE—EER #/ORMEEH—EESERERREERARNMER
ZHE RS HAEERNR168.8E BRI (BIEHENESEEMN13.6 BEEPIT) °
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ABOUT SEM

REIHS B
OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRELTL @)
(Continued)

2020 The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
“ET"ZFHF  Exchange”) on 14 February 2020.

KRABNR B EF_A+HEAREBMESRZFAARAR (MHAZFT) e

(¢

2021 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a
—ZE”—4 hospital development project at Cotai with the initial contract sum of approximately MOP123.0
million.

BEZRLG CBF) BE—EER  ARKF—AERERERRHEBERAGHNMHERZE
MBEHEEENA123.08 8B TT o

SEM Resources was awarded projects to supply and install electrical system in a data centre
development project at Kwai Chung and in sport park development project at Kai Tak with the
initial contract sums of approximately HK$42.0 million (equivalent to approximately MOP43.4
million) and of approximately HK$358.6 million (equivalent to approximately MOP369.9 million),
respectively.

SEM Resources E#FIER > AR R —EAHBET OEREBE M ARENBEE A ARBEES
RUEBRAGHNEERZE VRSN ED AN RI2.088 BT FTEHN48.488RM
7T) ’&358.6 8 E AT (T E#369.98 & RPITT) °

2022 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system
“ZEFET" " in a casino resort development project in Cotai, Macau with the initial contract sum of
approximately MOP27.8 million.
SERG (R BE—EEE > RAIORFIKF—ERESERBERIRHERARNERER
TR IR NEENR27T8EE Rt

SEM Resources was awarded projects to provide installation of mechanical ventilation and air
conditioning for chained catering restaurants, with the contract sum of approximately HK$3.7
million.

SEM Resources ERIEE » HEHBERMEHMBREALTERALE  SNSHEARI7BEE

g ©

2023 SEM Resources was awarded projects to install electrical system to convert an industrial
“ZET =% bpuilding to a commercial building.
SEM Resources 1§ NIEE AR EER AR — R T EBTFRERBHERF

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES IRV EFE R

our financial

Establishing an
E&M maintenance
department

PRI B R EERFT

Strengthening
our manpower

BEAF

121EH

SEM Holdings Limited JBZ 1A RAF)

Strengthening

position to undertake
more sizeable E&M
engineering projects

A SR A TSR LA AR R
BRARENKET



ABOUT SEM
BRRLIBIE

OUR BUSINESS MODEL EHER

Receive the invitation to submit quotation/tender from our
customers

Submit quotation/tender, negotiate with our customers on the
prices and terms, interview with customers and/or dealing
with customers’ enquiries

Accept the offer from our customer if a written letter of intent
is issued by our customer or quotation with our customer is
signed

BEERRIRE/RRNEE

RRME /R R R RERRIERE
THER GRFEXKR/ RNEEEFNH
&

HEREHEEERORARELEER
B RESEREY

‘4

Form a project team which normally comprise a project
manager, site supervisor and engineer

Prepare and submit, among others, working drawing and
detailed work programme

Engage imported workers and subcontractor

Procure electrical parts and components and renting
machines and equipment

Satisfy performance bond requirements

pRI—EEEER —RE—REEE
BT T E R TI2EMAERR

AR (AP e TREBMERFA
TF5tEl

ZEBAFIRDEH
REERT AL BHERKE

B R IRERIZ R

|4

Carry out installation and other ancillary works as scheduled
in the detailed work programme

Submit application to our customers for progress payment
and certification monthly

Carry out site acceptance test on the electrical system
installed to ensure conformity to contractual specifications

Negotiate with our customers for re-measurement and
variation orders from the contract

RRFMA I EAINRBRETEER
Hh#Egh T2

RAREFRXEENRKRERF
HTRERNERAMETRZRICAE
LRI EGHRE

MENMFEREBANTERERET
FEm

‘4

Make good any defects at our own cost within the defect
liability period

Collect the residue of the retention money and the
performance bond upon the end of defect liability period

RERFE S EHR B EEEEARE

RABEETHRWBRE ZHRBEKRED
fREK
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the Year 2023.

The Group has marked a major milestone the year of 2020 with its
listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 14 February
2020 (the “Listing”), undoubtedly providing an effective platform for
the Group’s further development in the market. The additional capital
raised and a broader capital base as a result of the Listing reinforce
our determination to the future growth in the E&M engineering
works in Macau and Hong Kong and promote our Group as a well-
organised enterprise to the public.

The Group has recorded a net loss for the Year 2023 and a slight
decrease in revenue for the Year 2023. This is mainly due to a
combination of the factors including (i) a loss-making project in Macau
Special Administrative Region (“SAR”); (i) increase in revenue from
sizable projects in Hong Kong segment; (i) increased labour costs in
Hong Kong and Macau markets due to prolongation of projects; and
(iv) lower profit margins as a result of higher labour costs and material
costs in Macau and Hong Kong market and fierce competition in the
construction market.

Despite the unprecedented challenges posed by global economy,
our Group remains steadfast in its commitment to excellence. As we
navigate the complexities of business operations in Macau and Hong
Kong, we maintain an unwavering optimism about the future of the
E&M engineering industry. The economic recovery presents us with
opportunities for growth. We have strategically expanded our E&M
maintenance department, bolstering our revenue base and positioning
ourselves for long-term success. By actively pursuing additional E&M
engineering projects, particularly in the Hong Kong market, we aim
to stabilize our revenue during the recovery phase and beyond. In
Macau, our expertise in electrical-related E&M services continues to
set us apart. We diligently serve our clients, leveraging our knowledge
and skills to deliver exceptional results. The Group remains committed
to exploring new projects within our specialized market segment. Our
collaborative approach with customers, suppliers, and subcontractors
ensures a harmonious partnership. With this advantage, we look
forward to revenue growth and a bright future for the electrical-related
E&M engineering industry in the years ahead.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERS

As representatives of the Board, | extend our heartfelt gratitude to our
esteemed business partners, professional associates, and dedicated
shareholders for their unwavering trust and support that have been
instrumental in our journey. | also commend our management team
and employees for their unwavering commitment, professionalism,
and remarkable achievements. Their collective efforts drive our
success. In conclusion, the Group will remain persistent and
determined to ensure long-term development and greater returns for
our shareholders.

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE w1

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT

Ready System (Macau) was founded in 2006. We are a renowned
and well-established E&M engineering works contractor in Macau
with our focus on providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works. The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted
of supply, installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new
and existing buildings in the projects of commercial and residential
property development, public property development, hotel and casino
development and renovation in Macau. The Group has diversified
its market risks and uncertainties by continuing to engage projects
with scope of our E&M engineering works in Hong Kong segment
through its wholly owned subsidiary, SEM Resources Limited (“SEM
Resources”).

During the Year 2023, 10 E&M engineering services projects with
an aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$39.1 million were
awarded. The Group had completed 9 E&M engineering services
projects in the Year 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s
backlog included 14 E&M engineering services projects with an
aggregate outstanding contract sum of approximately HK$267.2
million.

During the Year 2023, the Group recorded total revenue of
approximately HK$258.9 million, which decreased by approximately
HK$22.4 million or 8.0% from approximately HK$281.3 million for
the Year 2022. The slight decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue from Macau segment as the existing projects are
at their completion stage and the new projects are only commencing
in late 2023. Also, the Group faced operational challenges, including
workforce shortages and project delays, which contributed to the
revenue decline.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENm RN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT
(Continued)

The economy of Macau in terms of gross domestic product
increased in the third and fourth quarters of 2023, by 137.1% and
99.8% respectively, period-on-period in real terms. The economic
improvement is mainly due to the rise in tourism and gaming services
in the post-pandemic era. The tourist arrivals rose by 104.7% year on
year in January 2024 in Macau. It is predicted that Macau’s GDP is
poised to expand between 8.3% to 21% in 2024.

The Group continues its strategy of undertaking new projects of E&M
engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong to diversify the market
risks. Benefit from undertaking project in Hong Kong, the Group
generated project revenue of HK$236.7 million in the geographical
segment in Hong Kong in the Year 2023 when compared with
HK$169.7 million in the Year 2022. Many existing buildings in Hong
Kong require upgrades to meet modern standards. For example,
the Group was awarded a project to install the electrical system to
convert an industrial building to a commercial building. The Group
was therefore able to explore more business opportunities in different
business environments. Considering the latest state of economy of
Macau and Hong Kong, the Directors expect an improved business
environment in the coming years. The Group recognized the need to
strengthen its workforce in order to take on more complex projects in
the future. As a result, in the Year 2023, the Group was restructuring
its project management team and digitised the workflow. This
development allowed the Group to be better equipped to handle
bigger and more complex projects in the future. With a professional
and sophisticated team, the Group will be able to provide better
project management and supervision, ensuring that projects are
delivered on time, within budget, and to the satisfaction of its clients.

Hence, the management is cautiously optimistic about the E&M
markets in Macau and Hong Kong after the recovery from the
epidemic and will continue to strive for capturing the new market in
the changing industry dynamics for E&M engineering services.

EEOERTSZIIR @
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by 8.0% from approximately
HK$281.3 million for the Year 2022 to approximately HK$258.9
million for the Year 2023. Such decrease was mainly due to a
combination of factors as disclosed in “Business Review and Market
Prospect” above.

Bt #55[o] g
Wz

AEENBGEH-_E-_"FENN281.358E
TTRL8ONE_ZE _=FEMNMN258.98 8B
ToBRABIDHEERR EX TE£HEOEKRTS
FIS I FANESERER G HEEMRR-

2023 2022
—E= BT F
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEAT BEET
Restated
KBS
Hotels and Casinos BIE KRS 55 14.5 5.6% 27.3 9.7%
Residential properties FEME 2.0 0.8% 1.6 0.5%
Commercial properties [EEZYES 4.1 1.6% 11.2 4.0%
Public properties N~ Y/ ES 238.3 92.0% 239.8 85.3%
Others Hh - - 1.4 0.5%
258.9 281.3
Cost of sales HEMRE
The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$239.4 AEER T - =FEMNHER KN S239.47

million for the Year 2023, representing an decrease of 7.3% from
approximately HK$258.2 million for the Year 2022. Cost of sales
mainly comprised of labour costs and subcontracting costs, which
accounted for approximately 49.6% and 40.7% respectively of the
Group’s total cost of sales for the Year 2023 (2022: 24.0% and 51.2%
respectively). The decrease in cost of sales for the Year 2023 was
mainly due to decrease in revenue for the Year 2023.

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENm RN

FINANCIAL REVIEW continuea)
Gross Profit/Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s overall gross profit for the provision of E&M engineering
works decreased to approximately HK$19.5 million for the Year 2023
from approximately HK$23.2 million for the Year 2022. The gross
profit margin decreased from approximately 8.2% for the Year 2022
to approximately 7.5% for the Year 2023.

The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i)
higher labour costs and material costs in Macau and Hong Kong
market and fierce competition in the construction market; (ii)
increasing subcontracting cost.

Despite the decrease in gross profit margin of the Group in the Year
2023, the Directors consider that the gross profit margin has been
maintained at a healthy position as such gross profit margin in the
Year 2023 is expected to rebound in the coming years. The Group
is striving for bidding potential projects with higher margin and
implementing cost saving strategy to maintain higher gross profit
margin of the Group.

Other income

Other income mainly included interest income from banks, disposal of
scrap materials and sundry income. For the Year 2023, the Group’s
other income amounted to approximately HK$1.2 million (Year 2022:
approximately HK$1.7 million). Such decrease was mainly attributable
to the one-off government grant for securing the employments of the
Group in the Year 2022.

Other gains and losses

The Group’s other losses amounted to approximately HK$2.8 million
(Year 2022: approximately HK$95,000). The losses were attributable
to the impairment of property, plant and equipment.

A EEE
EFEFE

AEBFFRHNOEEIREEREEN R _S - —
FEEMA22BEEEB TRV E_TE=ZFENYN
195AEABT ENEXEHIZ T FENN8.2%
THREZZZ=FENHNT.5%-C
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TR R AR B B R HIBZ BT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continueq)
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal

The prolonged COVID-19 epidemic adversely affected business
operations of a group of project employer (the “Project Employer
Group”) of the Group’s sizable E&M engineering project of a hotel
development (the “Project”) in 2020, of which the outstanding
contract assets and trade receivables with gross balances amounted
to HK$27.4 million and HK$7.6 million, respectively were outstanding
as at 31 December 2023. The Project Employer Group suspended
the development of the Project in the third quarter of 2020. The
ultimate holding company of the Project Employer Group is a listed
company in the Stock Exchange, who announced the disposal
of interest in the Project Employer Group to a third party (the
“Purchaser”) for generating more cash to finance its operation under
the COVID-19 pandemic environment.

Despite the Group’s direct customers of the Project (the “Direct
Customers”) are not the Project Employer Group itself as mentioned
above, this increases the credit risks of the trade receivables and
contract assets of the Project. At 31 December 2023, the Group
has recognised cumulative credit loss allowance on contract assets
and trade receivables of approximately HK$23.5 million and HK$5.1
million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$17.8 million and
HK$7.1 million), respectively, of which credit loss allowance of
approximately HK$6.6 million and HK$2.2 milion (31 December
2022: approximately HK$5.3 million and HK$1.8 million) are related to
contract assets and trade receivables of the Project, respectively.

Management of the Group has actively communicated with the Direct
Customers and understand that the Direct Customers took legal
actions via arbitration against the main-contractor of the Project.
During the Year 2023, the arbitration related to the Project reached
an advanced stage and it was substantially completed, and we
received a positive outcome in the award. It is expected the remaining
portion of the arbitration process will be finished by the end of 2024.
We believe that we can recover the amount due from the Direct
Customers because (i) no matter what happens, our rights to demand
outstanding payments from the Direct Customers are not affected
by any other arrangements of other parties involved in the Project;
(i) good and long-term on-going business relationships between the
Group and the Direct Customers for more than ten years with no
default in history. Furthermore, there were continuing settlements after
the suspension of the Project during the Year 2023; and (i) the Group
obtained a repayment commitment from the Direct Customers to fully
repay the outstanding contract assets and trade receivables by the
completion of arbitration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENm RN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continuec)

Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal
(Continued)

Impairment losses under ECL model derived from trade receivables
and contract assets of the Group. The change in impairment loss
under ECL model from impairment loss of HK$12.5 million in the Year
2022 to impairment loss of approximately HK$3.7 million in the Year
2023 was mainly due to overall decrease in credit risks on certain
project customers and taken into accounts for the following factors
including (i) continuing settlements of completed works for billing to
the Project in the Year 2023; and (ii) decrease in gross balances of the
Group’s trade receivables at 31 December 2023.

Management of the Group have taken actions to recover the
outstanding balances of the Project and consider that those balances
will be recovered eventually. ECL has been provided on these
balances in accordance with the requirements set out in Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (‘HKFRS”) 9

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased from approximately
HK$17.6 million for the Year 2022 to approximately HK$22.1 million
for the Year 2023. Such increase was mainly due to increase of staff
costs and professional fees.

Income tax

The change in the Group’s income tax expense from tax expense
of approximately HK$1.2 million for the Year 2022 to tax credit of
approximately HK$0.2 million for the Year 2023, which was attributed
by the reversal of overprovision of Macau Complementary Tax in prior
years.

Net Loss

The Group reported net loss for the Year 2023 of approximately
HK$8.0 million, as compared with net loss of approximately HK$6.7
million suffered for the Year 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continuec)
Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year 2023 (Year 2022: nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group has financed its operations primarily through cash inflows
from operating activities, as well as proceeds received from the
Listing. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$35.9 million (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$19.7 million) and remains steady in its financial
position in meeting its future financial obligations.

As at 31 December 2023, the working capital (current assets less
current liabilities) and total equity attributable to owners of the
Group were approximately HK$183.4 milion (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$187.7 million) and approximately HK$209.1 million
(31 December 2022: approximately HK$217.1 million), respectively.

Gearing ratio (total debt including amounts due to Directors/total
equity) as at 31 December 2023 was approximately 24.3% (31
December 2022: approximately 23.6%). The gearing ratio was stable
comparing to the year ended 31 December 2022.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities, and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements all the time.

CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions and assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in MOP or HK$ of the relevant group entities and the
exchange rate between the functional currencies and HK$ is relatively
stable. As such, the Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions
and assets and liabilities as the Group’s risk in foreign exchange is
insignificant. However, the Group will continue to monitor closely its
exposure to currency movement and take proactive measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENm RN

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing financial assets and liabilities, mainly
interest-bearing bank balances and a bank borrowing. The interest
rates of these bank deposits are determined by reference to the
respective bank offer rate and interest rate on the bank borrowing is
based on the contracted interest rate at prime rate less 2.55% per
annum. The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTY

The Group’s business operations are conducted in Macau and Hong
Kong providing the electrical-related E&M engineering works and
our engagements with customers were on a project basis and non-
recurring in nature that we did not enter into any long-term agreement
or master service agreement with them. We have to undergo the
competitive bidding process for every new project. In the event that
we are unable to attract new customers or secure new projects
from our existing customers, there may be a significant decrease in
our revenue. Our operations and financial results would hence be
adversely affected.

The Group’s liquidity position may be adversely affected if the
progress payment or the retention money is not paid or released
to the Group on time or in full; or the construction project cash
flows are fluctuated. To monitor the pressure of financial liquidity,
the Group reviews aging analysis on regular basis and closely
communicates with management of the customers so as to get a
better understanding of their solvency status.

Other principal risks include fluctuations in estimated project
costs versus the actual project cost incurred due to unexpected
circumstances and imported labour quota allocated to our projects,
both of which would adversely affect the Group’s operations and
financial performance.

The Group is also exposed to certain market risks such as currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, etc.

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility of
everyone within the Group and has implemented a risk management
system to mitigate the risks in daily operations. Risk management
is led by the Directors at the top, who take both macro and micro
economic conditions into account before making business decisions,
and also aims to develop risk awareness and control responsibility as
the Group’s culture and the foundation of the Group’s internal controls
system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENmRA

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investments, nor material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associated companies for the Year 2023.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, a property in Macau with carrying amount
of approximately HK$15.2 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$16.5 million) was pledged to a bank located in Macau for
obtaining a mortgage loan to finance the relevant acquisition.

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2023 are pledged to secure the performance bonds granted to the
Group. The Group had no other material pledge of assets as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2023.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above and in the Prospectus, the Group does not
have other plans for material investments and capital assets as at 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no material capital commitments as at 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENm RN

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

The Group’s principal business objective is to further strengthen its
position as an integrated construction contractor.

For development of E&M engineering services, the Group continues
to achieve its business objective by expanding its scale of operation
through its intended effort in actively seeking opportunities in
undertaking additional E&M engineering services related projects in
Macau and Hong Kong markets, from both existing and potential new
customers, on top of its present scale of operation and its current
projects on hand.

The business outlook for the year ahead is expected to be positive,
as evidenced by high market demand and opportunities for growth.
With low debt levels and robust liquidity, the Group has the strength
and flexibility to take on new projects and invest in the future of
the business. In Hong Kong, the SAR Government has announced
various major infrastructure projects, which will drive demand for E&M
construction services.

In order to further diversify the risks and uncertainty in the Group’s
operation, the Group has expanded its scale of operation through its
intended effort in actively seeking opportunities in potential investment
in various industries in the greater China area in the coming future,
which would continue to expand the revenue streams of the Group in
long-term.

Consistently, the Group prioritizes fundamental principles to overcome
challenges and build resilience. We implement best practices,
proactively manage risks, and address logistical and material price
fluctuations. In preparation for future growth, the Group reorganized
operating units, appointed new leaders, and established procedures
to enhance governance and business development in emerging
technology and market segments. Our unwavering commitment is to
meet our customers’ expectations through the delivery of high-quality,
timely, and cost-efficient services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERER R R

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in elsewhere of this report, there have been no
other material events occurring after the Year 2023 and up to the date
of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the Year 2023, as far as the Board and management are
aware, except the deviation from provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group that has material impact on the business and operation
of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 72 full-time employees including non-executive
directors and executive directors as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: 79), among which 16 and 56 (31 December 2022:
23 and 56) were stationed in Macau and Hong Kong, respectively.
The total staff costs (including fees, salaries and other allowance,
and retirement benefit scheme contributions) for the Year 2023
were approximately HK$31.3 million (Year 2022: approximately
HK$25.2 million). The remuneration policy and package of the
Group’s employees were periodically reviewed by management of
the Company. Apart from retirement benefit scheme contributions,
salaries increment and discretionary bonuses may be awarded
to employees according to the assessment of individual and the
Group’s performance. The remuneration policy in place as at 31
December 2023 was in line with the current legislation in the relevant
jurisdictions, market conditions and performance of the staff and the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENm RN

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) have been listed on the
Stock Exchange on 14 February 2020. Net proceeds from the Listing
were approximately HK$71.0 million (after deducting the underwriting
commission and other listing expenses in connection to the Listing).

According to the announcement of the Company on 23 June 2023,
the Board of the Company has resolved to reallocate the unutilized
net proceeds up to 23 June 2023 (the “Reallocation”) as marked for
establishing E&M Maintenance Department by reallocating them to
strengthening manpower. The Board considers that further purchase
of machines and equipment for the E&M Maintenance Department
may not be able to make a breakthrough in the Group’s business
and generate better financial results and return for the Group given
the competition in Macau engineering industry has become more
intense. In view of the present business circumstances, management
determined to reallocate the unutilised net proceeds to strengthening
manpower of the Group in the Hong Kong market, which has
recorded a significant growth in segment revenue. The Board is of
the view that the Reallocation would solidify our competitiveness in
the market and serves the purpose of achieving effective deployment
of the Group’s financial resources. As at 31 December 2023, the net
proceeds had been utilised as follows:
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFhEREEBREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of seven Directors, including three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. The biographies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set forth below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wan Man Keung (FER38) (‘Mr. MK Wan”), aged 62, founded
our Group (through Ready Engineering) on 15 May 2006. He is one
of our controlling shareholders, our chairman and executive Director,
and member of our nomination committee. He was appointed as
our Director on 6 November 2015 and was re-designated as our
executive Director on 29 March 2016. On 1 August 2018, he was
re-designated as non-executive Director. On 26 January 2024, he
was re-designated as an executive Director and appointed as the
chief executive officer. He is also a director/administrator of each
of the members of our Group. He is currently responsible for the
overall strategic planning and management of our Group’s business
development.

Mr. MK Wan currently holds the certificate of registration of electrical
worker issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
in Hong Kong and is a Grade B electrical worker. He has more
than 28 years of experience in the E&M engineering industry. Prior
to founding our Group, Mr. MK Wan, together with other business
partners, through Ready Engineering, established, among others,
Ready System (Macau) providing various E&M engineering services in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. MK
Wan is currently an executive director of REM Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. MK Wan completed form three education in 1978. He was
awarded a craft certificate in electrical fittings and installations by
the Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong
in July 1981. He is the elder brother of Mr. CW Wun and a cousin of
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis.

For Mr. MK Wan’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV

of the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in
this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFENEREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wun Chi Wai (FE®&) (‘Mr. CW Wun”), aged 54, joined Ready
System (Macau) as a contracts manager on 1 May 1993. Mr. CW
Wun joined our Group as a shareholder of Ready Engineering Limited
(“Ready Engineering”) upon the incorporation of Ready System
(Macau), a company incorporated in Macau, on 15 May 2006. He is
one of our controlling Shareholders and our executive Director. He is
also a director of each of the members of our Group except for Ready
System (Macau). He was appointed as our Director on 6 November
2015 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
29 March 2016. On 1 August 2018, he was re-designated as our
executive Director. He is currently responsible for providing strategic
advice to our Group’s business development.

Mr. CW Wun was awarded the higher certificate in building studies
by Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1991. He obtained a master
degree of business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
January 1999. He is the younger brother of Mr. Wan Man Keung and
the cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis. He has more than 25
years of experience in the E&M engineering industry.

For Mr. CW Wun'’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in
this annual report.

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan (§iE E) (‘Mr. Yu"), aged 54, joined Ready System
(Macau) on 1 April 1994 as an engineer. Mr. Yu joined our Group as a
shareholder of Ready Engineering on 28 December 2010 and started
to work for our Group in around April 2013. He was appointed as our
senior project manager on 16 April 2016 and our executive Director
on 1 August 2018 and is one of our controlling Shareholders. Mr. Yu
is currently responsible for overseeing our projects management,
execution of daily management and operation.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yu completed a three-year part-time evening technician
programme at Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in
Hong Kong and was awarded a certificate in electrical engineering
in September 1992. Mr. Yu has more than 25 years of experience
in the E&M engineering industry. He currently holds the certificate
of registration of electrical worker issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong and is a Grade B
electrical worker.

For Mr. YU’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
annual report.

Non-executive Director

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis (B§FE5), aged 67, is our
non-executive Director and member of our audit committee and
remuneration committee. She was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 29 March 2016. She is currently responsible for providing
strategic advice to our Group’s internal control and corporate
governance. Mrs. Kan is currently a certified public accountant
(practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a chartered tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Between June 1977 and December 1980, Mrs. Kan worked for The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (currently known as
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited). She was
employed by John B.P. Byrne & Co. between December 1980 and
April 1985 with her last position as tax senior. She was a founding
partner of a local firm of certified public accountants from April 1997
to October 2010. She later founded KAN-WAN Certified Tax Advisors,
a tax consultancy firm, in December 2010 and BOYA CPA & Co., a
certified public accountant (practising) firm, in October 2012.

Mrs. Kan is currently a non-executive director of REM Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. She completed the programme of
diploma in management studies organised jointly by the Hong Kong
Management Association and Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in June 1988.
Mrs. Kan is a cousin of Mr. MK Wan and Mr. CW Wun.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer (2|{fE)GBS, SBS, JP, aged 72,
is our independent non-executive Director and chairman of our
nomination committee and member of our remuneration committee.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 22
January 2020. He is currently responsible for providing independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and was the president from
1996 to 1997.

Mr. Lau has substantial experience and involvement in construction,
real estate and infrastructure projects. Mr. Lau was a member
of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 2000 to 2004.
He was a former chairman of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (HK Branch). He was a non-executive director of the
Urban Renewal Authority, a member of the council of the City
University of Hong Kong, a member of the Council of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a member of the HKSAR Economic
Development Commission, a member of the Basic Law Promotion
Steering Committee, a member of the Lantau Development Advisory
Committee, a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Shanghai and a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
Mr. Lau was also an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (stock code: 1888) from August 2015
to January 2022 and an independent non-executive director of MTR
Corporation Limited (stock code: 66) from August 2015 to May 2019,
both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Also, Mr. Lau has
been an independent non-executive director of China Resources
Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited (stock code: 1209) since November
2020 and of SOCAM Development Limited (stock code: 983) since
June 2023 both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is
currently the managing director of Biel Asset Management Company
Limited.

Mr. Lau was awarded a higher diploma in quantity surveying from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in 1974 and a master degree in construction
project management from The University of Hong Kong in 1990.

Mr. Lau is one of the founders and currently the chairman of Hong
Kong Coalition of Professional Services.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFENEREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man, Raymond, aged 73, was our independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee
and member of the audit committee. He is a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and the Hong Kong Computer
Society. Ir Dr. Wong obtained a supervisory management certificate
with distinction from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1979, a
diploma in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1982, a Master of Business Administration from The
University of Hull, UK in 1992, a Master of Science in Information
Systems with credit from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
1995, a Master of Science in Management with credit from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a LLB degree with honours from The
University of Wolverhampton, UK and a Bachelor in Laws from The
Peking University, PRC in 1996, a Master in Laws with credit from
The City University of Hong Kong in 1999, a Master in Laws from
The Renmin University in Beijing, PRC in 2000, a Doctor of Business
Administration from The University of Newcastle, Australia in 2007
and an Australian Graduate Certificate in Immigration Law from The
Australian National University in 2009.

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]

EETw
BIERITEE @

HEXIE T TR 735 ABIIFRITEEU
RFHEMEEGETREREZEZEGME  REET
RSB EREBIERETERGTE - EHXIE
TIRRMR—NENEREEBEIREE?

BEEE (MERR 'N—NN\ZFREEEE
IARBFXEEEXR — AN FRUSHEHE
ABIBEERL —AAREMRIEBEIX
BEERABBRL HBED) ' R—ANRER
SEBEIASEERSET BED) HER
MIESEARERRER T  PEILRKREE
BB R-—NANNERTEBUHTREERE
T (2D RIZZTERFEPTHIERARK
SEmT RS2t HFISRARNGA R
MARTIHERBIRN _ETNFIREEX
FEEAZRBERARNTEBREZRERMARESR

2o



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFENEREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ir Dr. Wong has extensive experience in information system
development and corporate management. He joined the Immigration
Department of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 1972 and had been the Assistant Director in
charge of information system since 2002 until his retirement in 2007.
After retirement, Ir Dr. Wong has become a world-known independent
expert consultant in identity and border management. Ir Dr. Wong has
served the community in various aspects. He had been consultant
for the Disciplinary Force Diploma Course of The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, Adjunct Professor of the Department of Computer
Science of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and part-time
professor of the Biometrics Technology Centre of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy, aged 45, was our independent non-
executive Director, the chairlady of the audit committee and member
of the nomination committee. She graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a degree of bachelor of Accounting in 2006.
Ms. Chen has over twenty years of experience in accounting and
corporate management. She is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2011. She is
currently the Chief Operating Officer of a private company engaged in
manufacturing of electronic products.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yim Ka Wing (8 558) , aged 36, is our company secretary. She
was appointed as our company secretary on 7 December 2022. She
is currently responsible for managing and overseeing the corporate
governance and company secretarial matters of our Group.

Ms. Yim obtained the degree of bachelor of accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2012. Ms. Yim has
approximately 10 years of working experiences in accounting,
financial management and auditing. Ms. Yim has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
September 2015.

Mr. Wan Ying Pang GRFEHE), aged 27, is our financial controller.
He joined SEM Resources on 1 December 2022 and started to work
for our Group as financial controller. He is currently responsible for
managing and overseeing the financial operation of our Group.

Mr. Wan obtained the degree of bachelor of accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2019. Mr. Wan has over 5
years of working experiences in financial management, auditing and
financial due diligence. From 2019 to 2022, Mr. Wan served in two
of the big four international accounting firms in Hong Kong. Mr. Wan
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since March 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework for
the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles, the mandatory disclosure
requirements and the applicable code provisions as set out in the
section headed “Part 2 — Principles of good corporate governance,
code provisions and recommended best practices” of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG code”) contained in Appendix C1 to
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). To the best of the knowledge of the Board,
except the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
Company has complied with the CG code during the Year 2023 and
up to the date of this annual report. The Directors will periodically
review on the Company’s corporate governance policies and will
propose any amendment, if necessary, to ensure compliance with the
code provisions from time to time.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Upon the resignation of Mr.
Woo Chu Fai (chief executive officer) during the year, Mr. Wan Man
Keung, the chairman of Board, temporarily takes up the function of
chief executive officer. The Company is in the course of nominating
suitable candidates for the vacancy of chief executive officer.

As Mr. Wan Man Keung currently takes up the function of the chief
executive officer, such measure deviates from code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code. The Board believes that the current measure is interim
in nature. Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in this circumstance. In
addition, under the supervision of the Board which is comprised of 3
executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 independent non-
executive Directors, the Board is appropriately structured with balance
of power to provide sufficient checks to protect the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code
throughout the Year 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
Corporate Culture

The Board and management of the Group play a pivotal role in
shaping the corporate culture. Their leadership extends to defining
the Group’s purpose, values, and strategic direction. The desired
culture is one that fosters long-term sustainability, benefiting not only
customers, suppliers, and investors but also employees. Consistency
in reflecting these values is evident across the Group’s business
operations, workplace policies, and interactions with shareholders
and other stakeholders.

The organizational culture cultivated by the Board and management
emphasizes robust corporate governance. This includes mechanisms
such as workforce engagement, employee retention, and
comprehensive training. Additionally, the Group maintains stringent
practices related to financial reporting, whistleblowing, data privacy,
and anti-corruption policies. Legal and regulatory compliance is a
cornerstone. Considering the broader context, the Board considers
that the Group’s culture, purpose, values, and strategy are aligned.

Corporate Strategy

To fulffill its core mission of enhancing long-term value for shareholders
and other stakeholders, the Group is committed to achieving
sustainable growth across multiple dimensions. This includes not only
financial performance but also environmental, social, and governance
(“ESG”) considerations. Further details on the discussions and
analyses of the Group’s performance and ESG initiatives are set out
in the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023” respectively of
this annual report.

The Group’s strategic approach involves disciplined management of
revenue, profitability, margins, costs, capital allocation, investment
returns, and other financing activities. By integrating sustainability
into its business practices, the Group aims to create lasting positive
impact while maintaining financial resilience.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of seven
Directors including Mr. Wan Man Keung (Chairman and Chief
executive officer), Mr. Wun Chi Wai and Mr. Yu Chi Kwan as
the executive Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as
the non-executive Director, and Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer,
Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond and Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy as the
independent non-executive Directors.

There is a balance of skills and experience for the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 28 of this annual
report.

Save that Mr. CW Wan is the younger brother of Mr. MK Wan, and
two of them are cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis, there are
no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as operation and financial performance of the Group.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the chairman in drawing the agenda of each meeting and
each Director may request inclusion of matters in the agenda. Al
Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible
for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG code, the Board should
meet regularly and regular board meetings should be held at least
four times per year. Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The attendance record of each Director at the Board committee
meetings held during the Year 2023 is set out in the table below:

EETw

EETHEN =
RERNEN S SEEATNEEEEE
BHOTRRIINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BELRER/ XY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Name of Director Board AGM Committee Committee Committee
54 EXg KRRBEFEAE ENZ8Y R&ZEE HMWEEE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai HREESE (RZ2ZNE
(resigned on 26 January 2024) —AZ+RBED 4/4 11 NARER NARER NARER
Mr. Wun Chi Wai BEERRE 4/4 11 N/A R B N/A REF N/A i8R
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASERE 4/4 11 N/A TEA N/A REF N/A FER
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRAELE RI2ZME
(re-designated on 26 January 2024) —B Z+7x BT 4/4 il NA FER 1 N/AFREBH
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis EREREA 4/4 1/1 " NAREH 17
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer e 4/4 1/1 N/A R B 1/1 1/1
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, B8S L0812 8BS
(resigned on 5 May 2023) R_B_=F
HTALB#HA 17 NA REF 11 NA R B 11
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas BAREE (RZI2Z2=R
(resigned on 5 May 2023) TARHET) 1/1 N/A T B 1/1 111 N/A T
Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond HENET T2
(appointed on 5 May 2023) R-B-=F
LERHEZA) 3/3 1/1 6/6 N/A TER N/A TR
Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy Byt (W22 2=F
(appointed on 5 May 2023) HERHEZMA) 3/3 11 6/6 NARER N/A TR

During the Year 2023, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has three
independent non-executive Directors and all of the three independent
non-executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The three independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, the proportion of which can satisfy what is
required by rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-
executive Directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one third
of the board. No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive Directors as
this may lead to bias in their decision-making and compromise their
objectivity and independence. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the interest of
Shareholders.

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment contract with the Company for a period of three years
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors as set out in
the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (the “Second Amended M&A”) and the
code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a period of three years
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors as set out in the
Second Amended M&A and the code provision B.2.2 of the CG
Code. Pursuant to the code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, any
further appointment of an independent non-executive Director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, shall be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders at general
meeting. All Directors are appointed for a specific term.

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the nomination policy
with regard to the nomination and appointment of independent
non-executive Directors, and is mandated to assess annually the
independence of independent non-executive Directors to ensure that
they can continually exercise independent judgement. The Company
has received written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of his independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

EETw
EETHEN =

“ERBUFIATESEARSN =02 —WESF
GRE A LA m e L AR AISE 3. 10A KT
MEMWAR BRE > EHETANBILIFRNTT
EFANEFEEL =D —MEBAH-BIIF
HITEST S RFRXEHNRERI BA
IERISEEBURRRIE BEBUIFATEFNE
BMERBILIME -EFGHEE EFTEENANE
I DARIE AR SR A o

T RFPTEFTEBERERRATTIEZRES
o RE=F WARHEPREKLHEXRER
B MBS REFINEBER R KA

(M RGBT RARARR) U EEEART
AIRTRMAX EB.2. 2R Fr8 ERIES MERE
R EFEEERIFRFIRR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board takes the responsibility collectively to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior
executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. To oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”).

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure
independent views are available to the Board.

Independent advices are obtained from external professional advisers
to the Board. These advisers bring a fresh perspective to the Board’s
decision-making process and help to ensure that the Board receives
unbiased and objective advice. The Board shall review such practices
annually to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of such
practices.

A Director, including independent non-executive Director, who has a
material interest in a contract, transaction or arrangement shall not
vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution approving
the same.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations, and are invited to serve on the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

The Board has delegated to the management, consisting of executive
Directors along with other senior executives, with the responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction adopted by the Board
from time to time and conducting the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group.

The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of references. Further details
of the Board Committees are set out in the sections headed
“Audit Committee”, “Nomination Committee” and “Remuneration
Committee” below.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 22 January 2020 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the
appointment of new Directors, taking into account a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry and regional experience, and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

EETw
EENEE®

BUFATEZEERREABEFTBKFH
BEERS LYHERTR LBEETIR
EEFLERNBLHE BB UIFENITESE
BREBEZZEE RRLEEERFMEE SR
B o

EXZeREEERE AEATEERAMSRTT
BAB) BEEHESTFARHRMNRERT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continueq)

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

During the Year 2023, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
implementation and the effectiveness of the board diversity policy and
the policy’s considered to have been effectively implemented. The
Nomination Committee has reviewed and considered that the Board
is characterised by sufficient diversity, in terms of the abovementioned
perspectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender diversity
was generally followed in the workforce throughout the Group. As
of the date of this report, 28.6% of Directors and 19.7% of total
workforce were female. The Company’s target as regards Board
gender diversity has been achieved within the expected timeline. The
Company will continue to promote diversity, including but without
limitation, gender, age, skills, background, experience diversity, at
workforce levels. The Company’s aim is to increase the representation
of female in our workforce to 25%, in the coming year.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 22 January 2020 which sets out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of Directors, aims to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and to ensure the Board's continuity
and appropriate leadership. The Nomination Committee shall
identify candidates who are qualified/suitable to become a member
of the Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates nominated for directorships. The selection of
candidates will be based on a range of selection criteria as set out
in the Nomination Palicy, including but not limited to, character and
integrity, qualification, potential contributions the candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of qualifications, skill, experience, independence
and gender diversity, the candidate’s willingness and ability to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

For the appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will first
identify individual(s) suitably qualified to become Board members
and assesses the independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Director(s). Then, the Nomination Committee will make
recommendation to the Board for consideration, having regard to
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. The Board will
confirm the appointment of the suitable candidate or recommend the
candidate to stand for election at a general meeting of the Company.
The candidate(s) who is/are appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re-election
by Shareholders at the next annual general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Second Amended M&A.

For the re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will
also consider the retiring Directors based on the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, and assess their independence
before the Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the
Board to consider. After the Board considers each retiring Directors,
the Board will recommend the suitable retiring Directors(s) to stand
for re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Second Amended M&A. The Shareholders will approve the re-election
of Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge, experience and length
of service) of the Board on a regular basis at least annually and
diversity of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has set up a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
22 January 2020 with an aim to strike a balance between maintaining
sufficient capital to develop and operate the business of the Group
and rewarding the Shareholders. According to the Dividend Policy,
in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall take into account the following
factors:

(@) the Company’s operating results, actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

()  the Group’s liquidity position;

(@ general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal and external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Laws of the Cayman
Islands, any applicable laws, rules and regulations and the Second
Amended M&A. The declaration and payment of future dividend
under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board’s determination
that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
from time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it
deems fit and necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors have participated in the following trainings during the Year
2023:

EFNHEERERE

EEREYVBREELERAKEBLEUAMETH
BE rRERAESRTEAGEEENMIEGHE
NERTHEEGEHEM SHEEEENE
AERZAERDEREEN - 2EARSAERY
AR LRERESFIEEERETLRNES R
EERN W2 NBEFR EHRRKAERE
RREETHNEERER -

TR ZFE-BEEE2EMTHEI

Type of Training\“®

Name of Directors HENA 1R EE R =

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (resigned on 26 January 2024) PEREE (WZTZUE
—BZ+/<HED B

Mr. Wun Chi Wai FEREE B

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan MESERE B

Mr. Wan Man Keung (re-designated on 26 January 2024) FRBEE (WZTTUEF
—AZ+HFD A&B

Non-executive Director FEBITEE

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis AREZRERA A8B

Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFHITES

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer BRE % A&B

Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS (resigned on 5 May 2023)

Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas (resigned on 5 May 2023)

Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond (appointed on 5 May 2023)

Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy (appointed on 5 May 2023)

Note:
Types of Training:

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, expert briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant newspaper, journals, magazines and relevant
publications

LR FEE L BBS
MR—E2_=FRHFAH

1) A&B
BARBSLE (N2 -=

AR A BEE A&B
EE X E L T2

P _=

AEARBESRMD A&B
HEETE (RZE =

AEARBESRMD A&B
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 January 2020
with written terms of reference in compliance with rules 3.21 to 3.23
of the Listing Rules and the CG code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to, among other things, (i) maintain relationship with
the Company’s external auditor by including but not limited to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors, (i) review of financial information of
the Company; and (i) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee consists of Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy and Ir
Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond as the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-executive
Director. Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy currently serves as the chairlady of
the Audit Committee.

During the Year 2023, the Audit Committee has held seven meetings
and performed the following works:

(a8) reviewed the Group’s annual audited consolidated financial
statements for the Year 2022 and interim unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2023;

(b) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements;

(c) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and related
matters; and

(d) considered and made recommendations on the re-appointment
of the external auditors of the Group, and the terms of
engagement.

(e) considered and made recommendations on the appointment of
independent reviewer on an independent review and the scope
of independent review.

The Company’s annual results for the Year 2023 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (continueq)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
22 January 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance
with rules 3.25 to 3.27 of the Listing Rules and the CG code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to, among other
things, (i) make recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for all directors and senior management’s remuneration
and remuneration policy; (i) review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposal with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; (i) make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management; (iv) review and
make recommendations to our Board on other remuneration-related
matters, including benefits-in-kinds and their compensation payable
to our Directors and senior management; (v) consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; and (vi) review and/
or approve matter relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung
Kaizer and Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond as the independent non-
executive Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-
executive Director. Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management are
determined with reference to the responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted and the performance of the Group. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that no individual will be involved in
determining his/her own remuneration.

During the Year 2023, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting for reviewing the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the performance of them and making recommendations to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continueqd)

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the Year 2023 are as follows:

EEHZETw
HINZET @

RIBEEEARTHTAIEXFEENSF SREE
BEEZEBRINN _E - ZEERFNSEESZ DN
FEEEBOR -

Number of

employee(s)

EEE

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 A #8481,000,000% 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 71 & 2,000,00078 75 1
Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest ZEARALESHNESFHMAVE—THIEH

paid employees is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 January
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to,
among other things, () review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of our Board on a regular basis; (i) identify individual suitably
qualified to become Board members; (i) assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations
to our Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
(v) make recommendations to our Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on our Board and/or senior management.

The Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
and Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy as the independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. Wan Man Keung as the executive Director. Mr.
Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer currently serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (Continueq)

During the Year 2023, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting for reviewing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, reviewing the structure, size, and
composition of the Board and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered that the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and the aforesaid policies have
been maintained up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2 of the CG code.

During the Year 2023, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2023 in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty
that may cost significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
92 to 187 of this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 were audited by Moore CPA Limited (formerly
Moore Stephens CPA Limited) (‘Moore”), who were appointed as the
Company’s auditor on 30 November 2021 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Save
as disclosed above, there has been no other change of auditor for the
preceding three years.

For the Year 2023, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor, Moore, in respect of its services being the annual audit fee for
the Year 2023 was approximately HK$1.04 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this report, Moore provided non-audit services on agreed-upon-
procedures of preliminary results announcement amounting to
HK$30,000. These non-audit services are engaged only as they are
more effective or economical than those available from other service
providers and will not constitute adverse impact on the independence
of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of annual fees to external
auditor for non-audit services and for audit services in 2023 have
been scrutinised by the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and investments and the Shareholders’ interest and
conducts a review on an ongoing basis. The Board acknowledges
that such risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
conducted review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company in aspects of the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions through the effort of the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The Group currently has no internal audit function and the Board
reviewed that it is more cost effective to engage an external
independent consultant instead of recruiting a team of internal
audit staff to perform such annual review function. During the Year
2023, LIF Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) was engaged to
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system. The Consultant worked closely with the Group to identify risk
components and risk owners in different aspects through interviews
with and workshops provided to the Group’s management. Also,
the Consultant assisted the Group to evaluate the adequacy of the
existing mitigation plans. In addition, an independent review was
conducted by the Consultant under the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisation of the Treadway Commission’s 2013 framework
(“COSO” to identify weaknesses and enhance the effectiveness and
efficiency of the internal control system of the Group. Last but not
least, findings and recommendations resulting from the review were
reported to and discussed with the Audit Committee and the Board,
and the Consultant concluded that no significant area of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance control and risk
management of the Group has been identified.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board had reached the conclusion that the Group’s
risk managements and internal control systems were in place and
effective.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental,
social and governance strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group’s ESG risk management and internal control
systems to ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements
are met. Detailed information on the environmental, social and
governance practices adopted by the Group is set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023” of this
annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yim Ka Wing has confirmed that for the Year 2023, she has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The biographie
of Ms. Yim set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of insider information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders and potential investors is essential for enhancing
investor relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company has adopted the
shareholders’ communication policy with the objective of ensuring
that the Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including the financial performance, strategic
goals and plans, material development, governance and risk profile).
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and potential investors to make the informed investment decisions.
The Company review the effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy annually.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
the website of www.semhld.com; where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. Latest information of
the Group including annual and interim reports, report and other
corporate communications which will be sent to Shareholders and/
or published are updated on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website in a timely fashion.
Details of the arrangements for (i) dissemination of corporate
communications; and (ii) requesting printed copy of corporate
communications are published under the section “Investor Relation” in
the Company’s website.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Friday, 14 June 2024. The notice of the annual general meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolutions, voting procedures
and other relevant information, will be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 days before the annual general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Second Amended M&A, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Second Amended M&A or the Cayman
Islands Company Law for Shareholders to move new resolution at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
“Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” of the Company which is posted on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board
through the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit 1, 4/F, Chai Wan Industrial City Phase II, 70 Wing Tai Road, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong (email: general@semhid.com).
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 1 January 2022, the Listing Rules were amended by, among
others, adopting a uniform set of 14 core standards for shareholder
protections for issuers regardless of their place of incorporation set
out in Appendix A1 to the Listing Rules. Before the AGM held on
13 June 2023, the Board proposed to amend the existing amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company (the “Existing M&A”), among others, (i) to conform to the
amendments made to the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Listing Rules regarding the core shareholder protection
standards; (i) to allow the Company to hold hybrid general meetings
and electronic general meetings; and (i) to make other house-
keeping amendments for the purpose of clarifying existing practices
and making consequential amendments in line with the proposed
amendments. Accordingly, the Board proposed to adopt the Second
Amended M&A in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the Existing
M&A.

On 18 June 2023, a special resolution was passed at the AGM to
approve the proposed amendments and the adoption of the Second
Amended M&A. The Second Amended M&A is available on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works mainly consisted of supply, installation and maintenance of
electrical system, for new and existing buildings in the projects of
commercial and residential development, hotel development, casino
development, public properties and hotel renovation in Macau and
Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review on the Group’s business for the Year 2023 is set out under
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Listing was completed on 14 February 2020 and net proceeds
from the placing and public offer was approximately HK$71.0 million
(after deducting all listing related expenses). Please refer to the
Management Discussion and Analysis section in this annual report for
more details of the use of proceeds.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year 2023 are set forth in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 101 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year 2023 (2022
Year: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 14 June 2024.
A notice convening the meeting will be published in the Company’s
website and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
11 June 2024 to Friday, 14 June 2024, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to
establish entitlements of attending and voting at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
7 June 2024.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years is set out on page 188 of this annual
report. Such summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year 2023 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES
The Company did not issue any debenture during the Year 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Second
Amended M&A or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023, the Company has
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders of approximately
HK$31.3 million and of approximate HK$28.1 million, respectively.

Movements of the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the Year 2023 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 187 and 104, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year 2023, the Group’s five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 97.4% and 89.9%
(Year 2022: 95.6% and 58.2%) of the total revenue of the Group,
respectively.

The Group’s five largest subcontractors and the largest subcontractor
accounted for approximately 82.4% and 33.2% (Year 2022:
62.6% and 16.7%) of the total subcontracting cost of the Group,
respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and largest supplier accounted for approximately 63.5%
and 20.1% (Year 2022: 74.4% and 46.2%) of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year 2023, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

Employees

The Group has maintained good relationship with our employees.
The Group offers to our employees salary, bonuses and other
allowances. In general, the Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. The
Group has assessed the performance of our employees, which forms
the basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses and
promotions.

Customers

The Group has established stable business relationships with our
major customers. Our long-term business relationships with our
major customers and suppliers would further enhance our market
recognition and enable us to attract more potential business
opportunities.

Suppliers and subcontractors

The Group carefully evaluate the performance of our suppliers and
select them based on a number of factors such as pricing, quality
of material or equipment provided, timeliness of delivery and ability
to comply with our requirements and specifications. The Group will
review and assess their performance on an ongoing basis.

The Group also closely assess the performance of our subcontractors
and select subcontractors based on their experience relevant to the
particular project as well as their availability and fee quotations. The
Group will review their performance on an ongoing basis. Subject to
the Group’s capacity, resource level, cost effectiveness, complexity of
the projects and customers’ requirements. The Group is accountable
to our customers for the works performed in a project, including those
carried out by our subcontractors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group’s related party transactions
as set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements
were continuing connected transactions, which were exempt
from all disclosure requirements, annual review and independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report are as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 26 January 2024)

Mr. Wun Chi Wai

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan

Mr. Wan Man Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated on 26 January 2024)

Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer

Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS (resigned on 5 May 2023)
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas (resigned on 5 May 2023)

Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond (appointed on 5 May 2023)

Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy (appointed on 5 May 2023)

In accordance with the Second Amended M&A, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until and submit himself/
herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next following general
meeting after appointment.

TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANT

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation
to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding company
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Year 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Second Amended M&A.

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed for a fixed term of three years and
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Second
Amended M&A.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company or any
member of the Group, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 22 to 28 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code for
the Year 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in the note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the Year 2023.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive
to eligible employees, details of the schemes are disclosed under
“Share Option Scheme” below. Details of the emoluments of the
Directors and five highest paid individuals are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements. Details of the retirement
benefits scheme are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Second Amended M&A, the Directors and other
officers shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duties or supposed duties in their respective offices,
except such (if any) as shall be incurred or sustained through their
own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred,
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in any business which were in competition or
were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the Group’s
business which needs to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year 2023 was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of the SFO, which had to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
in which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares

EFRTBITHASRKRM HERRK
MREEEPFZETRKE

RIE_=F+_BA=+—H EFKELATE
ZITBRAERARBREAE ZE (EXxRES
KERERA) MRM BRI EEEFES
RIEBE S REABEAEXVEH7 R ESD E AR
AN RBMZFNERE XS (BERERE
BRBRXEEERRIEEENEREXE) >
BIREESH RIS 5 H352K L A ZIEFR il &
MBI Bk B 0 SRR TR B P SR 2E ST
BIZBH G A AR KGRI ERARBWT -

REBRZETE

Total number Approximate

of Shares and percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held (L) share capital
FR¥FRZ (7 R
HERARZ (5 BEITRAN
EENSA 517 #m4E (L) =Rl
(Note 1)
ozab,
Mr. MK Wan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
FR®BEE REEGEEN#ED (1772)
Notes: HizE -

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. SEM Enterprises Limited (“SEM Enterprises”) is owned as to 77.0%,
20.0% and 3.0% by Mr. MK Wan, Mr. CW Wun and Mr. Yu respectively.
Hence, Mr. MK Wan is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
SEM Enterprises under the SFO.

1. TLHERALIRZERMONIFE) (EEREFK
HAE1RGIZEXVED) ©

2. SEM Enterprises Limited (T SEM Enterprises 1) 43 5!l
HFARMBEE - FEREERAOEERETT.0%
20.0%5%3.0% 5 o At RIFEH R BE KRS
FRIBILEWTABISEM EnterprisesiZ B IFE
AR o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continueq)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of associated
corporations of the Company

EFRTBITHASRKRG - HERK
MREEEPFZETRRE @

REQATEBEBRNEBRZITE

Approximate

Total number percentage

Name of associated of shares of issued

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interests corporations held (L) share capital

FriFien BEITREH

EEER 517w AR TS (L) L E =Rl
(Note 1)
oz,

Mr. MK Wan Beneficial owner, interest in a SEM Enterprises 7,700 77.0%

FRMBAgE controlled corporation, interest

held jointly with others
BmEA A RRERIEEZZ
mBEEMAHEEIFE 2 #E

Mr. CW Wun Beneficial owner, interest held SEM Enterprises 2,000 20.0%
FEREE jointly with others
EnEA A BEEMBHERE
HBEz#m
Mr. Yu Beneficial owner, interest held SEM Enterprises 300 3.00%
BT E jointly with others
BmEA A BEEMBHE
FBEZH#m
Note: Wt

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
interests or short positions of the persons, other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, in the Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

E%H&iﬁéﬂ%}&*ﬁ RARG (D 2 xS
*

RIZBT=ZF+"R=+—H BESFMEAM"
BREFENEARFETEZTHAESI RIBFEH K
E1RBE3B6IFHEA R AFEZE MR
S Z AR BRERM PR Z Em ek

HKEWT

Long positions in the Shares RRRZEE
Total number Approximate
of Shares and percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held (L) share capital
FrisR 9 &K BRITRAN
RR%TE B #ENE MR D 4R B(L) o E = e
(Note 1)
oz
SEM Enterprises Beneficial interest (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
BEnm (Wa2)
Ms. Lam Yin Interest of spouse (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
Mzt foiBts (Hfat2)
Notes: Wt

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Ms. Lam Yin is the wife of Mr. MK Wan and is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which are interested by Mr. MK Wan under the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest and short position in
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration
to the Company that for the Year 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, he/she/it and his/her/its associates have complied
with the terms of non-competition undertakings (“Non-Competition
Undertakings”) given in favour of the Company which are contained
in the Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking. Details of the Non-
Competition Undertakings are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of compliance by each of the controling Shareholders with
the undertakings in the Non-Competition Undertakings and as far
as the independent non-executive Directors can ascertain, there
is no breach of any of the undertakings in the Non-Competition
Undertakings.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (i) require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
were entered into by the Company during the Year 2023 or subsisted
at the end of the Year 2023.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 January 2020, the Company conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive or reward
for contributions that the eligible participants have made or may
make to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any employee, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, client, partner or joint-venture partner of the
Company or its subsidiary (including any Director or any director of
the Group’s subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time employment
with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any subsidiary at
the time when an option is granted to such person under the Share
Option Scheme or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for the Shares thereby linking their interest
with that of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, in
their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible Participants. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of adoption, after which period no further options will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted or exercised prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme (together
with options which may be granted under any other share option
schemes) shall not exceed such number of Shares as equals to 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the Listing Date.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each grantee (including both exercised or
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but in any event will not be less
than the highest of () the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of the particular
option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date of the
particular option.

There were no share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme nor were any share options granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual report. The
total number of Shares available for grant under the scheme was
200,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]

fERg S E @)

BRESIETRMNIBERBHEFTTET
BERNARKAEENUTERSE ((RHERE
REEH WABEXR) BXEBREXRMT
RHETHE (W REAFABRERL BN A
SXEHMRPIEHRERMIIRN FHRTE
KiEHERBREERZRMNEE-

BREREECIRMNASAREEAFERHE B
RS EIE T ERITERERE HBE T ED
AR EER Y BRI 1T sEi g R e
FHEIET AT IR H 5 48 8% 200,000,000
o AR BN AFHR HHE 2ITRA10%

iz BEUR

KRB ERMKREBEE (REHRK)) BIEAR
SR ARRERRDIEKKRS  SREDZEERRF
B R BERBBIRKERRERHHE-

EFTREERTREBR HIREEHEEE
FILUERE R BT B3] K SER BER - 1%
BRREEABER THEARERAETLRRNEE
MREE HEARDBFRENARSEZMR
B/ HEEABEATHFTERELARTEE
ERERARERARFEIRRE



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 29 to 48 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conduct, employment and the environment. The
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023”, which forms
part of this annual report, is set out on pages 65 to 91 of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, except the deviation from provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code as disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Report, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact
on the business and operation of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float required under the Listing Rules during the
Year 20283.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and has
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters,
which include the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year 2023.

AUDITOR

Moore was appointed as the auditor of the Company on 30
November 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Save as disclosed above, there has been
no other change of auditor for the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year 2023 have been
audited by Moore, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2023
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RIf - HEKREREKS

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering
services. Over a decade of development, the Group realises
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) are indispensable
aspects to be incorporated in long-term development strategy. With
this regard, the Group gradually enhances operational practices and
develops ESG standards in a sustainable manner. Looking forward,
the Group commits to establish a corporate culture that is better
aligned with the expectations from stakeholders.

ESG governance structure

The Board holds the overall responsibility to oversee the Group’s
ESG objectives, strategies, priorities, targets and goals, as well as the
related policies and frameworks. Meetings are arranged regularly to
evaluate the effectiveness of the current policies and procedures and
develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance. In
addition, the Group’s business and functional departments worked as
ESG working groups, which assist to monitor the implementation of
relevant strategies and collect data in their respective areas.

Reporting boundary

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which summarises the
Group’s initiatives and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) for the
Year 2023. The ESG Report covers the business impacts of its E&M
engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong.

i
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2023
“ECCFIRE - HERERRS

INTRODUCTION (continued) BE @

Reporting principles

HEERRA

The ESG Report has been prepared based on four reporting #R&ETHIZBRTE EHRAIMERC2FFERIIRIE ~ 1t
principles which are in compliance with the Environmental, Social and &R &AM EIE5|INIERERA4REE -
Governance Reporting Guide set forth in Appendix C2 to the Listing

Rules.

Materiality

EEM

Quantitative

21t

Consistency

—t

Balance

F i

The Group undertook materiality assessment to ensure the ESG Report addresses concerns
from stakeholders. The assessment started from identifying ESG issues from four different
aspects, including environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practice and community investment. Based on the 24 issues identified, interviews and
questionnaires were conducted to collect opinions from internal and external stakeholders.
For details of the assessment result, please refer to the section headed “Materiality
assessment” in the ESG Report.

KREBETEAM T MUHIRESGIR & 78 70 R BUF {5 & VR o sTE R BN B R A
ERBHESCHRE > BERERE - EERSF IER SEBHARMERE - BRIESHT
M24E%RE > AERETHK B ERADE  MKERNERIIMNIFHENE R - BTG
HERIEIR A2 RIAESGIRE B A M T —He

To ensure stakeholders can have a better understanding of this ESG report, all

methodologies, assumptions, and source of conversion factor used to calculate the KPIs are
disclosed in respective sections in the ESG report.

RIERE M EEMNEF M T BAESGER S > B ARt EMRBENIERN A E ~ R&
HME R B NESCGIR S HEEINE -

Unless stated otherwise, the Group’s methods used to calculate the KPIs are consistent with
last year.

RABRBN REBRR G EAREGEIEENF EFHEF -

This ESG Report is prepared on an objective and unbiased manner to ensure that the
information provided reflects the true picture of the Group’s performance.
KESGHREUEFEH - TRAFHNANGEE ) UEFRAEENENRMAEREZENES

B e
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INTRODUCTION (continued) HEEw
Stakeholder engagement Fin&EsH

Listening to stakeholders is one vital mean in assisting the Group to  EEFHENER ZHBHAEBR R HEH
identify and balance risks from difference perspectives, this helps it to B R & EBHNEZE SR 2 — > BN AEEF
develop policies and set corporate goals. The Group keeps abreast of TEHHREEZELHXBZ - AEFFAIBERE
stakeholders’ expectations through various communication channels. & 7 RFMHENPE - BEFHEBEBENE
Below sets forth the channels used for communication with respective B &5 ©

stakeholder groups.

Stakeholder Group Communication Channel
&R BERE
Customers e Customer satisfactory surveys e ZEFEMEERDT
=R e Project meeting e IEHEH
Employees ¢ Annual appraisal o FEE
BE e Training o BIF|

* Meetings e R

e Internal announcement o NEAM
Suppliers/Sub-contractors e Project meeting o IBEEEH
HeEs HEE e Supplier assessment o HEERTE

e Site visiting o EMIER
Investors/Shareholders e General meeting o REKRE
B’EE BRE e Annual and interim reports o FEKTHRE

e Circular/announcement o BN
Community groups e Corporate website o NEIAEUL
HEERE e Industrial dinner o TEBRE

e Corporate social responsibility activities EMHEEEEE

The Group values the feedback from stakeholders. If you have any ZKTEB ERVIFTH ENKREBER - BT
thoughts and suggestions on the ESG Report, please share themto W HESGHRE B ERBEZREZ  FEB
the Group at general@semhld.com. general@semhld.comE K EFE D F o
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INTRODUCTION (continued) )
Materiality assessment BAM T

A materiality matrix was developed based on the replies from ZHAEBRBENENTSEHICE AR > I FE
stakeholders, which 16 critical issues were identified. Among the EI16EEEZBE - NEEZE T L944% LA B H
critical issues, approximately 44% are related to employment and EHB TERBR > XN %EESEZREM
labour practices, followed by operational practices at approximately — W Kz #925% B IR IG (ReER FE o

31%, and environment protection at approximately 25%.
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INTRODUCTION (Continued)

Materiality assessment (Continued)

Details of the 24 issues identified for materiality assessment are listed

FIRIE « HHERERBHRS

#BE @
BAM T @

BAM B BI24EZERNF BRI T

below:

1 Air emission a 13 Other benefits and welfare g
EE @ HBER HithFa @

2 Noise pollution a 14 Prevention of child labour and forced labour g
IRES G B2 T K oglss T

3 Wastes management a 15 Safety working environment and g
BEEYEIR occupational hazards

ZENTIRIRERBERS

4 Dust pollution a 16 Development and training @
MBS R RIE

5 Water use and efficiency a 17 Quality assurance @_},
KB R A R B = BHEWE

6 Energy use and efficiency a 18 Protection of intellectual property rights @_},
RERERA R E {REE R E R

7 Packaging materials a 19 Consumer data protection @_},
BEEME HEEERMRE

8 Natural resource management a 20 Anti-corruption @_},
IREREIE REE

9 Climate change a 21 Whistle-blowing policy @_},
RIEE1L BIBER

10 Employment management g 22 Supply chain management @_},
BEERE HEEEIE

11 Discrimination and equal opportunity g 23 Sub-contractor management @_},
R LS NEHEE

12 Promotion and compensation system g 24 Community investment @
S EEBNEIE HERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strives to identify sources that may have potential
direct and indirect impacts to the environmental from its operation
in various aspects including the use of materials and resources,
waste management, water pollution and air emission. In case any
are identified, the Group commits to work against these sources
to minimise the impact and seek alternatives to work around.
Environment management system was established focusing on
wastes reduction and resources saving and efficiency which will be
discussed in turn below.

During the Year 2023, the Group was not prosecuted for any breach
of any applicable environment laws and regulations, including but
not limited to Law no. 2/91/M regarding the environment law of
Macau, Law no. 8/2014 regarding the law of prevention and control
of ambient noise, Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Emissions

Sources of emissions

The Group’s E&M works mainly consisted of supply, installation and
maintenance of various electrical system such as energy supply
system, escalator and lift, heating system, ventilation system, air
conditioning system, low voltage system, distribution board and
switchboard, communication lines system, building automation
system, lightning protection system, fire detection and protection
system, security and alarm system, and plumbing and drainage
system.

These works are usually manual works which do not require intensive
heating process (e.g. welding), and do not involve the use of heavy
machines and equipment. As such, air emissions resulting from
heating and fuel combustion activities are limited.

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions (Continued)

Sources of emissions (Continued)

For waste emissions, the Group does not generate any hazardous
waste, and wastage of construction materials is the only non-
hazardous waste generated from its works. These wastages are
usually scraps cut off from materials, such as cables and copper,
during the installation process due to difference in size of the materials
employed and the dimension of the working structure. However,
the amounts of wastages generated from works are limited. Scraps
are disposed to on-site collection facilities which are managed by
employers or main contractors.

General activities associated with its business operations will also
generate emissions. They include daily general usage of gasoline
fuels, electricity and water from staff quarters, fuels consumed from
motor vehicles for travelling between construction sites, and paper
usage for construction drawing and general documentation.

Measures and initiatives

Despite that the emissions from the Group’s operations are
minimal, it will continually explore the possibilities of further
reduction opportunities in the future. To enforce the Group’s
ambition and commitment, the Group has signed the “BEC Net-
zero Carbon Charter — Action Signatory” launched by Hong Kong’s
Business Environment Council during the Year 2023 to embark its
decarbonisation journey toward net zero.

Waste management is always a crucial subject for the Group as it
creates great cost-saving opportunities. With this regard, the Group
reviews consistency of workings, drawings, and specifications to
avoid wastages of material as a result of possible re-work. For
procurement, the Group purchases materials of the most suitable
size to reduce excessive cut-offs and re-use scraps materials where
possible.

With respect to air emissions, the Group promotes resource saving
and efficiency to reduce emissions for its activities from staff quarters
and general offices. For details of the measures and initiatives, please
refer to the section headed “Use of resources” in this ESG Report.

REBEFRE @
BERH (42)

BB RIR (@)
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“ECFIRIE - HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions (Continued)

Measures and initiatives (Continued)

Below sets out the KPlIs for different types of emissions during the
Year 20283.

REBEFRE @
BE Y @
e EE @)

TXEHIARER RN —F = FERIRM
RAAMIEIR

Unit 2023 2022
Efi b Sk S
Gaseous fuel consumption emissions  RESIAELHEEHEY
NOx emissions ﬁaf EEERR kg T2 106,523.12 96,609.20
SOx emissions ine=Nokz1356/) kg T2 532.62 483.05
Vehicles emissions HEHRY
NOx emissions [RESTHRY kg T3 0.93 0.76
SOx emissions =R k=6 kg T2 0.01 0.02
PM emissions PMEEHY) kg T2 0.07 0.06
Greenhouse gas emission in COze BERBHERY
MZEEREEHE)
Scope 1 - Direct emissions #HEN-BEERWY
Stationary combustion sources EE WRIER tonnes M 1.75 1.58
Mobile combustion sources BENNER tonnes M 2.69 3.03
Scope 2 - “Energy Indirect” emissions BE2- TR H Y
Electricity purchased SNEES Note 1 fif5£1  tonnes M 83.06 74.81
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions EERE Rl S 16y
Paper waste disposed at landfils HEBERERER tonnes M 12.35 12.58
Electricity used for processing fresh BT ER P BRIk K
water and sewage by government SKERNEN
department Note 2 [ffz£2  tonnes M 0.24 0.37
Non-hazardous waste BEEEN
Paper R tonnes [ 2.57 2.62
Notes: Bzt -

1. For electricity, the emission factor of 0.609 kg/kWh and 0.680 kg/kWh
are available in Companhia de Electricidade de Macau’s Sustainability
Report 2022 and Hong Kong Electric’s Sustainability Report 2022
respectively.

2. For water, the emission factor of 0.162 kg/m® and 0.435 kg/m3 are

available from Macao Water's Sustainability Report 2022 and Water
Supplies Department’s Annual Report 2021/22 respectively.

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]

1. MEBImME HRAEH0.609F %R FTREK
0.680F %, / FTREADANBEMAEHRDER
REZE I HFEERREREBEIS
FRFEERREPER-C

2. BMEKMS BERAEO162FT R " ILHRKK
0.435F % /U A KB ARIRAPFIERK
CEVREEERSRKBEIS -
FEEREPER-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2023
“ECCFRIE - g RERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continveq) IRIGRE @
Use of resources ERFER

The Group keeps promoting green concepts to raise employees’ ZAEBNEHESEES  URESEIHHEE
awareness about the environment footprint created from daily EFREMMIRIECHINER - AEEHEENITE
operations. In order to build a green working environment, the Group — IR1E » N E B R ET 6 E R BHIRIBBEE R B R
continuously develops and implements environmental policies and BIRERENAIKRIEK o

practices in achieving resources saving and efficiency.

@

L}
4.
GREEN PAPER SAVING

PROCUREMENT B 4R

B

e Evaluate the usage e Equip photocopier with

of materials to avoid one tray for single-sided
overstock paper and another for
RER LT P New paper
BREFES AR E—E A

¢ Purchase supplies with
recycled content

BERIORpFEM

e Select energy efficiency
electrical appliances

EIZEAEBER

TR E E AR AT AR AR
K3 — B AR B E R
MRBYAR AR

e Encourage double-
sided printing

S ENEmFTEN

e Promote the
use of electronic
communication and
documentation
REFREFENK
X
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea
Use of resources (Continuea)

The Group’s major resources consumptions were sourced from
the electricity and water consumed by offices and staff quarters
for daily operation/living. The Group’s premises where they are
located did not encounter any issue in sourcing water. To ensure the
implementation of a low-carbon workstyle, the Group’s ESG working
group will actively review electricity and water bills to detect abnormal
consumption and investigate if any significant usages are noted.

According to Hong Kong Observatory, Year 2023 was one of the
second warmest years. In particular, the mean temperature during the
months of June and August reached 29.7 degrees. Consequently, the
electricity consumption of the Group’s offices and workshops located
in Hong Kong had been increased. For Macau'’s office, the significant
decrease in water consumption was mainly due to the declined
business, hence project members stationed in Hong Kong had
reduced the travel to Macau. On contrary, the Group is obligated to
provide accommodation to its foreign labour, therefore the resources
consumption from staff quarters remain stable over the years, The
Group targets to reduce energy consumption intensity continuously
by inspiring its employees on conservation habitats and regularly
monitor the consumption of energy. Below sets out the KPlIs for the
consumption of respective sources. The disclosure for the use of
packaging materials is not relevant to the Group’s businesses.

IRIFRE @
BRER ®

FEBNTEERHEDRERLAERELR
EHBEE EEFEENKE - REBFTEH
NIGPREUK I S B A R - i REAR T
ER B > ZEBAESGIFVERRIBE
EEERKEE  UEREEHE WEREM
BEREABR REMBAE-

BEEEBERANENHE _ S _=F4A%F _RE
HNEMZ— HA» NARNBNFEERRES
20.7E At REBMUNREENPRAERTH
MAESAMEM URPWAZEMS » KHE
KR LEBERRVESRL BIEEREEN
BEERERVAERMANTRE B AEEES
EAMNESTRETERE ALETESNERH
RESFEREFET AEENBERBBEE
BEEMHNEBREHRENEREEBR
HIE(ERE R HEERE c TXHEN S KRB HEEW
RBENIEZ M ERANIREREAERN
E Sl

Unit 2023 2022
B —EZ= -
Energy consumption AEIRIHFE
Offices and workshops WAEKRTSH kWh F E B 72,579.00 56,250.00
Staff quarters EEREES kWh T ELBF 56,392.00 58,202.00
Energy consumption intensity BERHIERE KWh/unit 14,330.11 11,445.20
FEREEBAL
Water consumption IKHFE
Offices and workshops MAERTH m3 3L F5 K 4.00 105.00
Staff quarters BIES m3 3L F5 K 730.00 968.00
Water consumption intensity ICHFER E m3/unit 121.67 214.60
SHKBAL

Mzt . ERAL\SABTBRLGANAKE RAR
RKBEEFERERME WHEARHERDE-

Notes: The water consumption of Hong Kong premises are not included
above as the water is provided by building management and shared
among different tenants.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea

The environment and natural resources

Despite the Group’s E&M works will not have direct significant impact
to the environment, the quality of its works may lead to serious
environment issues, such as unintentional leakage, if the systems
are not properly installed. The Group committed to execute a robust
quality management system to ensure that the system can be
operated as intended. Details of the quality management system are
discussed under the section headed “Product responsibility” in the
ESG Report.

Climate change

With response to the defining issue of our time, the Group has
identified climate-related risks and evaluate the potential financial and
operational impacts on its business operation during the Year 2023.
With reference to the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate
related Financial Disclosures framework, the climate-related risks and
the corresponding mitigation measures are as follows:

Judging from the labour-intensive operations of the Group, acute risks
arising from storm, fold and heatwave will pose significant delay to the
projects’ progress. During the extreme weather events, workers may
not be able to commute to clients’ work site and affect the delivery
schedules of raw materials. In additions, the structure installed and
materials on site will also be exposed to risk of damage, resulting in
financial losses. On the other hand, as majority of the Group’s works
are performed indoor, gradual changes in mean temperatures will lead
to higher chronic risk of occupational hazards due to stuffy working
environment.

Regarding to the physical risks identified above, project meetings will
be held regularly so that action plan can be developed timely to rectify
any potential delays. Also, precautionary measures to safeguard the
structure installed and materials on site are employed prior to possible
extreme weather events. They include, among others, (i) inspecting
drainage inlets to ensure water discharge will not be blocked and
installing water pump, if necessary, (i) using plastic sheeting to
keep floodwater out for temporary protection, and (i) wrapping and
securing materials on site.

Furthermore, the Group has adopted and implemented the “Guidance
Notes on Prevention of Heat Stroke at Work” issued by Labour
Department to prevent workers from suffering heatstroke. Measures
include () providing cool drinking water to avoid dehydration; (i)
relocating equipment that generate heat and extracting hot air from
the workplace; (iijinstalling ventilation fans to enhance air flow and
promote heat dissipation and (iv) arranging work shifts and providing
adequate rest period.

IRIERE @
IRIBRKRIAEIR

BEAEENKEIEITEHRRELEEREE
AEE EHAMTEAE HTREE0ES
EYRRENRIEHEE AINEINRRE - REE K
ERITRE2NBEEEERG  UWHRRRENIZ
REARET - HEEERAMNFIBENESGRE
MEmBEEI—Hatme
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HR EAEHNNYWEBERE  AEBRTEHE
HEEgE UEREHETHE 4 EEM
BENIER LI TR SE A BRI RREGHZ
B AEBETERERERLIE M RERSZEDN
ERRME - ZEHEHEE (ET R ()BT h
KO UEFRIEKOFAZEE HEXNERZE
IKER (i BB AR B LK IE A > LIEBE B (R
Feaiii) 61 5 K2 [E E IR IZ A L o

B Sh > A8 B O 3R K B 25 T 5z 35 1 BY (FRBA
TERsRZ4551) LR I AR Z - BRAEEE
R EERBVERAE K B TABRIK ; (i)RFZ 2%
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Employment

Human resources are the cornerstone of the Group, and the Group
commits to shoulder the responsibility to provide them with safe
working environment and support their career advancement.

The Group is subject to labour laws and regulations which includes,
but not limited to, Labour Relations Law, Employees’ Compensation
Insurance Ordinance, Social Security System, laws and regulations
for the employment of non-resident worker, regulation on prohibition
of illegal work and lists of restricted and prohibited works provided by
minors.

To ensure compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations,
the Group have established human resource management system to
govern, among others, recruitment process, hiring and termination
procedures, promotion and compensation system, health and safety
management and training and development program of the Group.

The Group respects human rights and strictly prohibited any act of
discrimination in the workplace. To ensure this can be eliminated,
standard performance criteria are used to ensure that every
employee are evaluated equally and consistently. Gender, age, race,
skin color, nationality, religion and political affiliation will never be a
factor for consideration of performance evaluation. In addition, the
Group encourages employee to voice out if any dishonorable act is
observed.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 72 (2022: 82)
employees and directors with direct employment relationship, and the
overall Group’s employee turnover rate was 44% (2022: 42%). During
the Year 2023, the Group 24 employees were hired for replacement
of staff attrition throughout the year, within which approximately 91%
were employees for project department.
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REEEHREMAIRTARIBERER -

BE_ZE_=—F+"B=+—H AEEHAET2
H(CEITF  82%) ERERRBANEESRE
S RAEENEEREERAXA44% (ZEZZ
F42%) RIE_=ZFE AEE2FEMR24
HEEMUBRETIREL EHP491%AIEE I E
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Below set forth KPIs of the Group’s employment:

HE-EERFILER @

1% @
TXEIAEERBHREBESIEE

2023 2022
—E=F B CF
Number of Turnover Number of Turnover
employees rate employees rate
EEAK K= EEAH TMARE
By gender R
Male B4 58 44% 65 50%
Female pegc 14 45% 17 13%
By age group ¥R AR 53
30 or below 30FR T IA T 16 47% 22 67%
31-50 31E505% 34 41% 34 36%
51 or above 518 a3 E 22 46% 26 29%
By job position BT (RS9
Top and senior management RekaREERE 18 32% 19 19%
Middle management iR EIEE 22 47% 25 8%
Entry level 4k 32 49% 38 78%
By geographical region it &2 5
Macau P 16 56% 23 55%
Hong Kong 5E 56 40% 59 35%
Notes: The employee turnover rates are calculated using the number of i . EBERAXREREEABBU_ S _=FE
employees leaving employment divided by average number of EHREREAHEE.
employees for the Year 2023.
Health and safety EEHED
Risks of accidents and injuries to workers in construction sites are EE T T AMNENREZREBEEMEE o 24

inherent. The Group has established occupational health and safety
management system to minimise accidents in the workplace and
ensure work sites are operated in compliance with relevant law and
regulation. The Group was reported 21 (2022: 2) incidents of work
injuries, which lead to 1,078 (2022: 100) lost days. The Group will
continue to evaluate the potential causes leading to work injuries and
implement corresponding measures to minimise the occurrence of
workplace injuries. The Group is pleased that no work-related fatalities
have been occurred in the past three years.

EEEEURERBRTE2EERA LB ITE
BRNSESCRER/D  WHEE I MIREAER A2

FEHREB AERRE TR (T2 2F 12
R) THEEH - EHT1,078E (CZE -4 : 100
@) BEANITIEH AEBFEBTHERTE
BB R > 3 S i 4B FE FE 5 LA R A PR 3R L
THEEHNEFE AEESEMEEIR BEA=F
WA A B T EAERARISE TS o
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Health and safety (Continued)

During the Year 2023, the Group was prosecuted by Labour
Department for the violations of safety-related issues regarding a
project in Hong Kong. As of the date of this report, the Group had
fully resolved the issue above, and had implemented enhanced
measure to avoid the reoccurrence of similar incident.

HE-EBRERFIER @

BERZE @

RIZZ=ZFE AEEREAN—EREERE
RzzHEFEEES TRBZE - BEFARSH
FEEESR2MRAR LR X EE MRS
DB U EFBREE -

| |
w
- PERSONAL SAFETY AND m SITE SUPERVISORS
EDUCATION Ty
ABR2EHE 0
e Distribute safety manuals to all workers ¢ Appoint registered safety auditor to conduct a safety audit
AFRE I ARRZ2FRH EEAMZ 2B BETREE
e Offer training courses to ensure workers are familiar with the e Perform site visits and inspections regularly
safety rules THETEMER MRS
IRAE)ER2 ) LUBE T AREZ24RE] e Stop/suspend any unsafe acts and dangerous operations
* Wear personal protective equipment FIEBEEATRENTARERFE
T E AP B ¢ Review safety rules and policies regularly
THERZ 2 HE KR
’ L} EMERGENCY PROTOCOL MACHINE MAINTENANCE
Y B HERERE
) P
e Report to site supervisor to ensure injured worker e Check to ensure all machines are in good condition
receives immediate medical treatment before they are put into service
MIMEERS  WEFRZETALBER AR TR ABARETREURFRTA KB ER RIFiIK
e Report such work injury to the Labour Affairs Bureau/ A&
Labour Department and insurer within the stipulated e Maintain an updated list of machines to ensure regular
time maintenance is performed
ERERBRNBRS TEBR, % IR KMREATR (RS B B D B R T R
SEMAIE
u
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and Training

As an E&M engineering company, the development and training
program heavily focus in the safety area. Due to the nature of the
Group’s operating practice, it often hires foreign workers from labour
quota and engages sub-contractors to carry out its works. As such,
the Group must provide adequate safety training to ensure employees
and employees of sub-contractors are familiar with the Group’s safety

policy.

QOur training programs are developed on project basis, this is because
the risk of injuries associated to the works content may vary. The
Group training programs cover various aspects which include, among
others, machine operation, work at height, work in hot weather, on-
site materials management, electricity application, fire prevention and
emergency procedures.

During the Year 2023, the Group offered a total of 3,260 (2022:
3,800) hours of internal safety training courses to 244 (2022:
410) workers, including our employees and employees of sub-
contractor, and the average training hours completed per worker
was approximately 13 (2022: 9) hours. As the employees of sub-
contractor do not have direct employment relationship with the
Group, the calculation for percentage of employees trained for sub-
contractor is not applicable.

HE-EERFILER @

R Rt

ERRETREAR REAFIIFHI TEMER
B -ANTERSETHROME  HEEK
SIFRRERMEIANTLERYBEEARIIE
Ft > AEBLAERHBENNRZ2IEI > UERF
BERDEHENEEATFIEENZEHR-

FEBEBEIG BB IRFEEMSIE > IETHER
S TERBERNZERBRAIERTR A&
BEEIFERESEER  2F (HHaR) #
HBRF-BEFE -BRRXRIF THMEE
B-BHERA -HAKRESRERF-

N TETFEAEEAB244% (TE T
FE 410%) TA (BEZRMANVEERSEEN
EE) IBHHE3,260 (CEZ_FE : 3,800) &
N R Z2EERE 88 T AT TFY
EIEHANIS (CEZ_FEE :9) B/NE-f
Kol EERAEE T EEZERERAR
ItsEPERTIIMEET DL AEA -
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

HE-EBERFIER @

BB RIE

2023 2022
= -
Percentage Average Percentage Average
of employees training of employees training
trained hours trained hours
TRiIMEEBALL THEIRE TIESESL  THEIEH
Workforce by gender R DHES

Male B 98% 10 97% 7
Female 2 36% 9 44% 15
Sub-contractor PEH N/A R¥E A 14 N/A 3E B 9

Workforce by job position BRIEEfIEI2NES
Top and senior management REKRSHREIEE 78% 11 79% 13
Middle management RAREIRE 100% 10 68% 2
Entry level kS 63% 10 100% 9
Sub-contractor SEH N/A RiE R 14 N/A 3E 9

Note:

The percentage of employees trained is calculated using number of

employees trained divided by number of employees at the end of the
Year 2023.

Labour standards

The Group strictly prohibits any child or forced labour, or any unfair
treatment to our employees and does not employ staff who are
below 18 years of age. With this regard, the Group has established
recruitment procedure which requires that identity, age and other
personal information of all job applicants must be verified to ensure
that they are physically and conditionally qualified to be hired. If any
incidents of the above are discovered, the Group will immediately
stop the child from working, report to the local labour bureau in time
for any incidents of child labour and investigate the cause and factor
leading to forced labour. In addition, disciplinary actions will be taken
to punish the wrongdoer.

During the Year 2023, there were no reported non-compliance with

relevant laws and regulations relating to preventing child or forced
labour.

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]

et ZilEEBRDLEEZIMEEAMGU-Z "=
FEEBA#MGE-

BT AR

REBBREILEMETIAGSE T S ES
EHERATAFRFE T AEREABI18KUTE
Teomit 7EECHIERBRER  EXLEAZ
BEFTAERBENS O FRREMEAER X
ERESNEBRIEHTaRBAER WNHIRFE
A Lt EG > AEESUAMRIEZRETF &
RREMSBEREEMNELSF AEENR
H1%5 THREKREZE < 15 > A E B 7R SR EAC
BED BIAEBRE-

RN TECZFE AERTERSEAERERH
By 1E 8 T slis 55 TRVABREERIERAYIE R °
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply chain management

Suppliers and sub-contractors are vital business partners of the
Group as they contribute to assist the Group towards quality
excellence. Supplier/sub-contractor management policy was
established which defines the robust requirements and procedures in
monitoring the selection of suppliers and sub-contractors. Standard
acceptance procedures, such as obtaining attainment and business
registration documents, sample testing and site visiting, will be
performed before new supplier and sub-contractor are engaged. All
approved suppliers and sub-contractors are recorded in an internal
approved list and are subject to regular evaluation. Generally, the
Group will invite more than one supplier/sub-contractors from the
approved list for each order/sub-contracting work for quotation
purpose. During the selection and evaluation process, the Group will
consider factors including, among others, product quality, on-site
performance, labour management, safety management system and
environmental responsibility.

The Group also requires its supply chain partners to uphold the
Group’s principles of ethical business conduct thereby minimizing the
environmental and social risk that may be encountered. Any suppliers
or sub-contractors with inferior past records of material environmental
or social accidents, such as excessive pollution discharges to the
environment, and exploitation of workers, will be removed from the
approved suppliers list.

HE-EEER
HEEEEE

HEBRDEEAEEREFEENEBSF
B REARERNBHAERERSERET
HFHEM AEEERUHRER DEEEE
B ZHRAEEZEEREHER RO EEE
BRERREF RERMEESRDEEZA
RAITRENEWNER NEREEREEET
X AR RIS ER FRARB A NHER
RO EBEHYEEINAERAEE ) WARETER
e —RME  AEBRRUBAIBERF — 4
UEHER " DEEMESHEIE NEIRE
THRE-RRAEATEBRET ZEEBRETRE
mEB - RERR - FTER - Z2EEBHER
BRIEEEEAR-

FERERAHBERSEFRAREAEERBND
FEBRTRA MBI EBRNRERTE
EEEERE - EABERENRRENEEEN
FHAFREHRNHEERND K WEIREH
BB Z RS RY R FH T > R ™A
B rhfR o

2023 2022
=== BT &

Number of suppliers by geographical region %3t & 2| S HHEERE % E
Hong Kong 58 111 75
Macau B 34 49
China F 3 3
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product responsibility

Quality control is one crucial process to the Group’s business as
this is the foundation leading to the Group’s success. The Group
established comprehensive policy governing the required procedure
to perform at the inception and completion of a project. To ensure the
quality of project implementation, members are assigned to project
teams according to complexity and scale of the project, and each
team member was assigned with specified duties.

Site supervisor is responsible for monitoring the quality of works
of employees and sub-contractors in real time. Project’s progress
meetings are held regularly to ensure our works meet customers’
specification, completed according to schedule and comply with all
relevant regulatory requirement. Furthermore, inspection checks are
performed for all materials, machineries and equipment delivered
before they are employed.

In addition, the Group, together with the customers, will perform site
acceptance test for all electrical system installed to ensure conformity
to specifications. If any defects are detected within the defect liability
period, the project manager will investigate, and workers will be
arranged to address the defects. During the Year 2023, the Group
have not received any complaint or request for product recall from our
customers due to quality, safety and health issues in relation to works
performed.

As the Group’s business process does not involve advertising and
labelling practices nor possess significant consumer data, the impacts
relating to the protection of intellectual property and consumer data
are relatively immaterial to the Group. Nevertheless, to protect our
brand, all of our business logos has been properly registered. In the
event of intellectual property infringement by third parties, the Group
will engage its legal counsel to take necessary action against them.
In addition, all the software and information system employed in daily
operations are with legitimate licenses. On the other hand, contracts
between the Group and its employees contain a confidentiality clause
to prevent the disclosure of sensitive information. Proper internal
control procedures are employed in the Group’s operational and
information technology system to ensure that information will only be
accessed by authorised personnel/department of the Group.

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]

HE-ZEERw

HEERNATEREBNERERRE REAER
FEBBREHINRE -AEBEFIERENE
BRBRTREFLBATHREFHEEER &
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AE WEZHTAREZFRB - R T "=
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group commits to maintain a corporate culture with integrity,
probity and accountability through the establishment of relevant anti-
corruption policies. Code of conduct, conflict of interest policy and
privacy and confidentiality information were covered in the Group’s
internal control manuals which clearly defines the moral standards
it desired. In additions, corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is
strictly prohibited. Whistleblowing policy was established to allow
employees to report any misconduct or malpractice events observed
on a confidential platform and will be duly investigated by the Group’s
senior management or audit committee. Any matters of genuine
concern are to be thoroughly investigated by the management and
actions will be taken accordingly.

Trainings and employee handbook, including information relating
to anti-corruption, were arranged and circulated to employees
and directors at the commencement of employment and during
employment (if there are any updates) to ensure employees are aware
of the philosophy, objectives, and policies of the Group.

During the Year 20283, there was no bribery, extortion, fraud or money
laundering found, and no legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees.

HtE-SEER®
REE

AEBRNREBST EHERREBBRRTH
BN EEREBHNEREXC - AERBIABPIES
FRRET AR P EmEREERUAKRIAR R
BER HRBAEMRIERRE I &
BRERATZANEE  FARIEIEF- RAERIESR
BHER UL EERRBTARSMERENEM
FETAVERBEMH TREFEESHREERE
NEREZEGETEERE AEEMERAER
REERFNEE W RIERTE

IR 2 PR I R R R R B K (R R HA R (W
EEM AEENESHUETFM(BEERR
ERVER) URFRES THRAEENES
RRER

TR CFECAERUESRBER HR
HEF RO RERIIER TS Rt A E B H
EBENEBITRIRERNERRE -

Annual Report F£E#R &5 2023

83



84

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2023

" -FIRIE - e RERHRS

SOCIAL - COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group commits to support the communities through social
participation and had dedicated its focus in contributing to the
environment, labour needs, and health. The Group actively shares
social affairs to employees so as to increase their awareness to the
community, and eventually repay the society through participating
in social events and helping vulnerable groups. Looking forward,
the Group hopes to join hands with stakeholders to better serve the
community.

The foremost priority for the Group is to provide our employees with
a safe and healthy and comfortable working environment. To reinforce
our commitment, the Group enrolled in the “Mental Health Workplace
Charter” and “Joyful@Healthy Workplace Charter” and participated in
workshop jointly organised by the Department of Health, the Labour
Department and the Occupational Safety and Health Council during
the Year 2023. The main objectives of these programmes were to
promote mental well-being at workplace and create a joyful and
healthy working environment.

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]
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ESG CONTENT INDEX

BRIE- g RELATES

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
o
[Em BMIER it BT
A. Environmental
AR
Emissions Al General Disclosure Environmental
BER — MR EEFIE protection
Information on: IRIGRE
EfERMREREBIHR B KRALTHES - EE R
BEREER
a) the policies; and
a) BERER ;K
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) BIFHETABEAZENMEREZERRGN
Bito
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BB LR S AR RABE I B BEm
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Emissions
greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where BE
appropriate, intensity.
E# (BEN) RicREE (BE2) BERBEBIMAEE
MESTE) K (NER) BE -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity. BE
FREXEEREEYEE CURHE) Rk WER) BE-
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Emissions
where appropriate, intensity. BER Y
FMEABREEEYEE UUWEE) &k WER) BE-
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and step taken to Emissions
achieve them. BEA)
HBALATE] LR BE 2 B AR K A E 55 £ B R P ER NSy
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Emissions
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction Ez135&7]

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HRIEAEREEEEYN G E > MM PIET LAY
FEE B R R A E RS B RPN A A BR 0
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HERERBNETERES @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
i3k e
EmE BUIER  Ht BESH
A. Environmental (Continuead)
ARIE #)
Use of resources A2 General Disclosure Use of resources
BIREEA — R EEE BIREA
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BERERER (BIEETR KREMEME) BB -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of resources
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity. BIRER
RELEIDMNERRHEEER B Roh) 2
2 UTETRENHE REBE-
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of resources
HFEKEBREE- BIRfEA
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Use of resources
steps taken to achieve them. BIRER
BILFTE] MR AE R E AN G B R R R ERELEEEM
PREXB9 2 B o
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of resources
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set ERER
and steps taken to achieve them.
H SR EE B AR ] BERIRE UK FRET L A
KA B AR e 4 B iE L B AR PR EREN AT P 5% o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Use of resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit BERER
produced.
UL mFTAEEM AR E U MESHE) K (EA)
FEBMUGSE-
The Environment and A3 General Disclosure The environment and
natural resources —AR K EEF IR natural resources
RIBRAARER Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on ~ IRIERRAE R
the environment and natural resources.
BEZETAHRERRAERENEATENHE
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on The environment and

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
HMEBEHHIRERRAEBERNE R E K BRI
BEERTENTH-

SEM Holdings Limited EZZERBRAE]

natural resources

RIBERRAER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2023
“ECCFIRIE - HEREARS

ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HERERBNETES @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
i
EmE BAIER  Ht BESH
A. Environmental (Continuead)
ARIE #®)
Climate change Ad General Disclosure Climate change
RIEBIE — B BEE FRBIE
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
HAREHERE RO EEHETAEERENEARR
EAERAE ERVEER ©
A4 .1 Description of the significant climate-related issues Climate change
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the mIEEAME
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB R KA EEHETAEEZENE AR EERE
EH KEHTH
B. Social
Bt &
Employment B1 General Disclosure Employment
& 15 — R EEE =
Information on:
ERFMRBEE -BERSH TIERE BB -F%
e Znlb RIERUREMFEREND
a) the policies; and
a) BREKR, &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
by BIFHETABEAZENHEREAEZZRRGM
B o
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group Employment
and geographical region. (=20
ZHR - BEEE - FRER Rt e B DM EE R H -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region. 2%

iR FlRAER Rt B DNESRKLLR
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

HEKRER/KS

RIB-HEREBABTRS @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
i
fEm BEMIERE BEEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE (#)
Health and safety B2 General Disclosure Health and safety
REHEZE — R EEE REHEZS
Information on:
BREHZ TRRRERRERERSEREZEY
BEN:
a) the policies; and
a) BREH ;K
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) BIFHETABEAZENMEEAEZZERRGMN
o
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in Health and safety
each of the past three years including the reporting year. BREHEZS
BE=ZF (BREREE) SFRAI TR AZ KT
Ko
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety
RITEEERITIEE# - REHEZS
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and safety
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. BREHEZS
?**‘ffﬁﬁﬁéﬁm BOB 2= 2 R 2 4R U R MERAEIT R
7r\ /Z °
Development and training B3 General Disclosure Development and
EIEYaE —R I EEEIE training
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills R R I
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRRAEERIT LIFB S H# R SERVBUER o
MIENES) o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category. training
B REESENEDNZINRET DL BRI
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. training
EHRREELRERE D SHEETHXINTES ZF R R

56
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued) RIE-HERERBNETES @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference

i

fEm LV e P 2EEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE ()
Labour standards B4 General Disclosure LLabour standards
& T2 — R EFERE TR

Information on:

BRAMIEET &EHI5% T -

a) the policies; and

a) BERER ;K

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

b) BIFHETABEAZENMEREZZERRGAM

relating to preventing child and forces labour.

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices Labour standards
to avoid child and forced labour.

HiAR T IR R B AV B TR LB o 8 T e sR g5 T o BT AR

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Labour standards
when discovered.

T B IR R B RO R B R B R P BRI P 58 o T 28]
Supply Chain management B5 General Disclosure Supply chain
HrEEEE — R EEFE management

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of

the supply chain.

BIRHEHENIRIE R E RREE - HEREIE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply chain

management
& B D HEREE o HEEEIER

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being management
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

HIt AR AREENIEN  mENTHERIEGIRH HEREIE
FEEEE » UM TRER %

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they management
are implemented and monitored.
w7 B B e e S EIR BT MV IRIE et & AR AV IB HpEREIR
B> U AERAIT R BEZR A ©

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply chain
preferable products and services when selecting management
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

M EREHREERECESHARRERQKRRBENE HAEREIE

B> U ABRA T S Ba 2 757k ©
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

HEKRER/KS

RIB-HEREBABTRS @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference

i

fEm BEMIERE BEEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE (#)
Product responsibility B6 General Disclosure Product
EmET —HR I EE A responsibility
Information on: EREE
ERFMEREERMBRFNREEZ - BE - REE
FEEEURERG AR .
a) the policies; and
a) BREH ;K
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) BIFHETABEAZENMEEAEZZERRGMN
B o
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Product
recalls for safety and health reasons. responsibility
BENBEXER@HMPE L HEREIEAMEBRLR R mEF
B

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints Product
received and how they are dealt with. responsibility
BERNERMRBNEFEEUARELR 5% EmEF

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product
protecting intellectual property rights. responsibility
Ht B A S I (R PR AN E RE B RERVIB A 0 EmEfE

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product
procedures. responsibility
il E ST B2 K EmEIWREF - EmEF

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Product
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. responsibility
U BB E R RIE R AR SR U BREEIT &8 EmEf
%H/i >
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HERERBNETES @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
i
fEm LV e P 2EEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AtE (#)
Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure Anti-corruption
REE — R EEE REE
Information on:
BRI IERRRE ~ 1R s IFF RO R 880 ¢
a) the policies; and
a) BEREKE; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) BFHETABEALENMERAEZZERRGN
i
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERSHEANEETANEEERETEEENES REE
ARG MB B R ER
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
HI B B R BRI U REEARITRERA REE
& o
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-corruption
directors and staff.
HirnEERETRENRESEC REE
Community investment B8 General Disclosure Community
HEKRE — AR EEEIE investment
Policies on community engagement to understand the HERKRE
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRUEZERTHREEMTHEREENBEEE
BEBgEEtENmIBEK -
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community
EISREE- investment
HERE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community
EEIHEMBAER investment
HEXRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIANZBENR S

Moore CPA Limited

K| MOORE

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +852 2375 3180
F +852 23753828

www.moore.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SEM
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 101 to 187, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZ R ERAE]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIANZBENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtER

Recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts

FED K B BT R t4 T AR 75 & #9689 M it

We identified the recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts as a key audit
matter due to the involvement of significant management
estimates in determining the contract revenue for each
electrical and mechanical engineering services contract in
progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group recognised revenue of HK$22,144,000 and
HK$236,750,000 mainly from provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering services to hotels and casinos,
public, commercial and residential properties in Macau
and Hong Kong, respectively by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period as disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements. As set out in Notes 4 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements, the amounts of revenue
recognised reflect the management’s estimate of each
contract’s outcome and stage of completion, which were
based on the input method by considering the proportion
of contract costs incurred for the work performed to the
end of the reporting date, relative to the total estimated
costs of the contract at completion.

HRNEESETHB RN I RERB NS
mRY REXEER M HIRERRE BN R
TRERBEANWEHR SEARESEE

REE_ZS_=F+_BA=+—HLEEE NEEHH
RERMEASEE SEBK2ZNREPRGVES
52 B P E5 P 58 U 722, 144,00078 7T 52236, 750,00078 7T »
FEREDREEPFIREBHEE RIRLIG A7
ERETYEREB RSN TIRIRE - 4R &8 53R
KR sTAKOFFE BN ESENBEERBHESH
ER R SER PSR st A RN E B RE BEER
BT IREENGL NG TS ARG T 42 AL
KEFTERANE AL

FARETEE»

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FZHENTREMBENFENGE

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue from
electrical and mechanical engineering services contracts
included:

° Understanding key controls on how management
estimates and revises the total contract costs and
margins and recognises revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts;

e  (Checking the accuracy of the contract sum to signed
contract and/or other relevant correspondences (and
variation orders, if any);

e Assessing the reasonableness of the total estimated
contract costs of significant projects by checking against
quotations, agreements or other correspondences
provided by subcontractors or suppliers, on a sample
basis;

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated profit
margins of significant projects, on a sample basis, taking
into account of the complexity and duration of the
projects and margins of similar completed projects;

R EREIRE BN REMIERB SO NENEF
B

s THRABMEEENMAMGE RETEEHMAELIKIESR
RE BN REMITEZRB S 2 T EZEHIETE ;

s BMBERANR/AEMBBAER (REEHE< WH)
BRTRIER R

s BERENCBHAHEBHRENRE - HRIEME
R MR A EARBER GBSO AN ST ;

s KEREBNEMEAFTERBRENETEENS
A iR SHEEREB G FERNSENR ;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtER

Recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts (Continued)

BT E B R LIRS S48 ()

SEM Holdings Limited JEZ R ERAE]

FARETEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

LT RIEMBENFENGE

Examining the accuracy of costs incurred to date and
stage of completion by checking the certificates or
invoices issued by the subcontractors or suppliers, on a
sample basis;

Evaluating the reliability of the management’s estimated
budget costs and budgeted gross profit margin, on a
sample basis, by comparing the total actual contract
costs incurred at completion of completed projects
against the total budgeted contract costs; and

Discussing with the management to understand and
evaluate the status of projects under construction,
including estimated costs to completion, assessment
of potential liquidated damages for major contracts
and provision for onerous contracts with management,
finance, and technical personnel of the Group.

BREEZEDEOHNAHEHLANZENERE
Fehk B B R P& R B E BRI pR AN IR 1

BER O THETRFEENBRGAOMARERR
MAEEAHRELER ?E*%.:JFTEAEET&J%E%ZE}ZZIK
REBEFNERHNEEN ; &

2 EEEEEAB -HUBAE B‘Z?ﬁ)\%%ﬁﬁb&?ﬁﬁ
ReHEERER R 8RBT IRELE - BEAGH
RN RBREOER-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIANZBENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

FEWE 5 Rk R & 49 B E Y B B AT I

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables and contract assets
to the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of subjective judgment and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL”)
of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets amounted to HK$21,034,000 (net of
loss allowance of HK$5,123,000) and HK$132,060,000
(net of loss allowance of HK$23,515,000) respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
reversed impairment allowances of HK$1,932,000 for
trade receivables and provided HK$5,680,000 for contract
assets.

HPERBWEZ R RENEERETGRHEE
ZEE REARSBREZRAREGNEEN SEELKR
BB RRNERMELURN TG SERNRSHARE
WEBSERRENEERREERE (RREEHR)
PRy R EBH B R BB E b5t o

RIEBE-_=F+"HA=+—H°> SE£EENEWKES
AR EHNEED R A21,034,0005 75 (30 B &5 18 #5
5,123,000 75) 52132,060,00078 75 (30 & &5 18 3 5
23,515,0007) - BE_EBE-_=F+"_H=+—HIHE
> SE£EERMEKRESRKRERLBRERE,932,0008
TR EHE E TR 55,680,000 7T ©

FARETEE»

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FZHENTREMBENFENGE

QOur procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets included:

e Obtaining an understanding of how management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets;

e  Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the ECL assessment, including aging analysis
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2023, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual items in the
analysis with the relevant sales invoices;

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuation specialists appointed by
management of the Group;

RFIAREWE SRR ENEENRETENEFEE:

s THEEENMAMGHBREZRAKREGNEENEER
B

s BWBLLEOMDHEFEEBLEERMBEEER  MEKR
AEEERERREEHERNGMAENNTEL
BER_Z_=F+"_A=1+—HHNERKEZERZRN
BREC AT

o it EEEEEEMZERNEIIEGEEMBE
T ERREEN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

REEtER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

FEWE 5 Rk R & 49 B EBY B E AT (4)

As disclosed in Notes 16, 18 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements, trade receivables and contract assets
are assessed individually for impairment assessment and
management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime
ECL of trade receivables and contract assets based on
the Group’s internal credit ratings, historical credit loss
experience, aging analysis, repayment history and/or past
due status of respective trade receivables and contract
assets. Estimated loss rates are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information.

MR S B RKRMIE16 18 R27ATINE > IR E 5 iR
Mk EHNEEMAMRENGETHEL SEEERE
BEZERNKESERRREGNEENEAERREEET
B BEEEBBRRE REDT ERELR,HEAH
MER  RIBMGEFBRE SRR RENEENE IR
EEBIBZE GERRDNREFARRERANNE
SEHRRENREL AT ER LB
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FARETEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

LT RIEMBENFENGE

Reviewing the valuation methodology and parameters in
the ECL assessment; and

Challenging management’s basis and judgment in
determining loss allowance on trade receivables and
contract assets as at 31 December 2023, including their
identification of credit-impaired trade receivables and
contract assets and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information);

BEREREEERIEFERNGEL ERBH &

BEREEETREN _S_=F+"A=+—HNE
WEZERKRGHNEENBRER D EVKRERA
b SEEANEERENRKEZRIRENEE
MUK FrB BB R R NIKIE (B EELEN R KA
BEEERD ;



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIANZBENR S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

HER
EATEERYHMES AR
BRERNNES BFRES
IR B ETRE o

Hit5 B 82ET
G BRER KNI
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BMPTAHZEHMESEREATANESE
A o

BERMARGEVBRENES RANEERE
REAMER  FItBET  EEHMEERE
BIREHBRENBMAEZSHBREDHR T #H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZ R ERAE]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIANZBENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

ZHEMF B sHir & M IR IR AEDN
BEw
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

Lai Hung Wai
Practising Certificate Number: PO6995

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
m R HEM 2N mR

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE —Z =&+ _HA=+—HItFE

& A4S
fl‘\ﬂ'\n H

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAETT
(Restated)
(#2E%))
Revenue W= 5 258,894 281,333
Cost of sales iHE B AS (239,382) (258,183)
Gross profit EA 19,512 23,150
Other income EH A 7a 1,178 1,674
Other gains and losses Hihigm 7b (2,803) (95)
Impairment losses under expected TEREEEE (FTRHE SRR
credit loss (“ECL”) model, B TR ERTE
net of reversal 0 ExREE[E] 8 (3,748) (12,499)
Administrative expenses TR (22,053) (17,555)
Finance costs BB AL A g (274) (2571)
Loss before tax PRI ARS8 10 (8,188) (5,576)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigfik e, B 12 218 (1,157)
Loss and total comprehensive KA EE A
expense for the year attributable to FABERER
owners of the Company SF HARRE (7,970) (6,733)
Loss per share (HK$ cents) SEE GBI
Basic BN 14 (0.40) (0.34)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
kR e BN R

At 31 December 2023 R-ZE_=F+_H=+—H

At
1 January
2023 2022 2022
AT T T4
—E=F BT & —EB—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt =% FHET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
Gl (Ce==pl))
Non-current assets ERENE E
Property, plant and equipment 12~ BB K 5% 15 15 31,358 36,040 38,065
Rental deposit Heizs 16 47 123 116
Deferred tax asset RERIEE E 17 - = 247
31,405 36,163 38,428
Current assets RENEE
Trade and other receivables FEUR B 7 BR TN K
HthpE U= IE 16 22,265 58,213 53,187
Contract assets BHRBEE 18 132,060 113,707 105,621
Pledged bank deposits BEIRFIRITER 19 18,128 19,575 1,447
Time deposit EHER 19 20,167 21,052 27,333
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 19 35,887 19,746 39,045
228,507 232,293 226,633
Current liabilities meEnafE
Trade and other payables RSB Z R &
HithE=IE 20 40,558 40,472 28,551
Contract liabilities HHEE 18 532 138 749
Lease liabilities HEaRE 21 603 371 868
Tax payable FEIiRIE 2,699 2,882 3,289
Bank borrowing RITRE™R 22 740 712 719
45,132 44,575 34,176
Net current assets mENE EFE 183,375 187,718 192,457
Total assets less current BEERRSEE
liabilities 214,780 223,881 230,885
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
tra MR R

At 31 December 2023 R-ZE—_=F+_H=+—H

At
1 January
2023 2022 2022
ATE T &
—EC=F B THF —A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
s FHET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
Gl Ge==gl)

Non-current liabilities EREIEE
Deferred tax liability FERIEEE 17 67 102 =
Lease liabilities HEaRs 21 211 566 228
Other payables H i =Ia 20 5 = =
Bank borrowing RITRE™R 22 5,355 6,101 6,812
5,638 6,769 7,040
209,142 217,112 223,845

Capital and reserves B K #E
Share capital %N 23 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves EE] 189,142 197,112 203,845
209,142 217,112 223,845

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 187 were HF101ZE187TEMNGEMBFREEN _E_NE=
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 B —t+/N\HEZ=SgH EREBHET|E > W H 5

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: EERAREE
Mr. Wan Man Keung Mr. Yu Chi Kwan
FRMEEE ASERE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mAEmER

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE —Z =&+ _HA=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NI =N
Share Share Legal Accumulated
capital premium reserve profits Total
B i iaE RS RehiaEd k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
(Note)
(Hzt)
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) A ZE"F—F—H
(#8551 20,000 81,928 13 121,904 223,845
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEREES MR
expense for the year - - - (6,733) (6,733)
At 31 December 2022 (Restated) ~ RZZEZ"F+-F=+—H
EE=pl) 20,000 81,928 13 115,171 217,112
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREEY HEE
expense for the year - - - (7,970) (7,970)
At 31 December 2023 R_E_=F+"_BA=1+—H 20,000 81,928 13 107,201 209,142
Note: HiaE -
In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau Special ~ HB#E(HZE A R HAERPI4F 5T EE (T8RP )) ik i)

Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China (‘Macau”), the
company registered in Macau is required to transfer part of its profits of each
accounting period of not less than 25% to legal reserve, until the amount
reaches half of its share capital.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZ R ERAE]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE —Z =&+ _HA=+—HItFE

2023 2022
—EZ= “ECF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT TFET
(Restated)
(#2E%))
Operating activities R RE
Loss before tax PR AT S8 (8,188) (5,576)
Adjustments for: AU T BIEEHAEE
Depreciation of property, Y~ B R R T E
plant and equipment 2,819 3,083
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZE  BERKREIEE
plant and equipment - 95
Interest income ) B WA (1,014) (75)
Impairment losses on property, ME - BERRENRERE
plant and equipment 2,803 -
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of ~ FEHAEEREIEE THRIERIE
reversal MR EEE] 3,748 12,499
Finance costs BB AL A 274 251
Operating cash flows before movements in BEESEYKERERE
working capital 442 10,277
Decrease (increase) in trade and FEUW & 5 BR 7R EL At FE W AR IE
other receivables R (0 37,956 (9,166)
Increase in contract assets/liabilities, net EREBE BAaEREEN (23,639) (17,063)
Increase in trade and other payables FE1T B 5 AR 70 R EL A FE (T AR IE I8 0 336 11,987
Cash generated from (used in) operations LRI E1E (}Eﬁ B BHs 15,095 (8,965)
Income tax paid BPTE - (1,215)
Net cash from (used in) operating RESEEIRRE (FB) IRE 28
activities 15,095 (5,180)
Investing activities KREIEE
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RN E IR IFRITER 1,447 =
Withdrawal of time deposit REE BERR 1,045 39,603
Interest received GG 1,014 75
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BERRE (302) (489)
Placement of time deposit FHEBRER (160) (33,322)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHERIFIRITER - (18,128)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWZE BEREZEN
plant and equipment FriSFRIE - 198
Net cash from (used in) KBEEEFRS (FTR) IREFE
investing activities 3,044 (12,083)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —ZT _—F+_HA=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—EZ= —ECF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(#2=E%))
Financing activities A& EED
Repayments of principal on lease liabilities BEREaGELAE (761) (1,020)
Repayments of bank borrowing BERITER (718) (718)
Repayment to a former director of BAA B —HBIEESENR
the Company (279) (5617)
Interest paid BT E (224) (199)
Repayments of interest on lease liabilities EEEEEGHR (50) (52)
Advance from a director of the Company RAB]—HEFER 34 =
Advance from a former director of RAB]—HBIEEERNR
the Company - 450
Net cash used in financing activities B EBIFTAIRE R (1,998) (2,056)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash RE&ERIFEZXFEYIEM GH/L) FEE
equivalents 16,141 (19,299)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FVRERBEEEEY
beginning of the year 19,746 39,045
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRRERFEEEY
end of the year,
representing bank balances and cash BIIRTT4SER R IR & 35,887 19,746
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GENERAL INFORMATION

SEM Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the
Cayman lIslands on 6 November 2015 and its shares were
listed on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 14 February 2020 (the
“Listing”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report. The immediate holding
company of the Company is SEM Enterprises Limited, which
is a private company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”) and controlled by Mr. Wan Man Keung, an executive
director of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong.

Prior to 1 January 2023, the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Macau Pataca (‘MOP”).

During the current year, the directors of the Company consider
that Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”) better reflects the economic
substance of the Company and its business activity as an
investment holding company primarily holding subsidiaries with
primary economic environment in Hong Kong. Accordingly,
the presentation currency of the Company was changed from
MOP to HK$. Comparative figures have been restated to reflect
the change in the Group’s presentation currency. All values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Hence, the consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”), whereas the functional currency of
the Company is MOP.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
hr o AT IR AR MY oE

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HE —Z =&+ _HA=+—HItFE

— iR E R

BREZRARAE (AA8) K2 —1
F+—ABEHEHEREHEEEEA
BEFREAMMIULRELAEREER
NECHRPR_Z_SFE_A+HAES
BBMERZMARAR (TBiZFT)) =ML
(TEmY) o AR EMPBEMURETE
EEMB TN BNEEREAREN —&-
AABINEZERARAATEBELES
(TEBEZEE)) MBI —KAAR
SISEM Enterprises Limited (A B #ITE
ERERLEES) o

ERBB—HREERABDRENE AT
ERNRFAREBRERHENREMT
RARFS

TR =F-A-HZA EEMHERER
T5LORPI 7T (DRPFI ) 2510

REEE > XRBEERRA Ax (Bxl)
BERBEATKREFAKEZERAT £
ERENBRARANERES UKETEEE
RBEUREBNEEEE AL AAFZ
25 ERHRPITEBREIT - I LEREE
EREIURBRKAER 2 ESHEHIEE B
SHEBERIN FIERENNEERBLINT
fiLe

HE R EMFBHRERT LU (TBT)) 2
5> MARB ZHEEE KA RPIT
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continueq)

For the purpose of re-presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group from MOP to HK$, the assets and
liabilities are translated into HK$ at the closing rates as of the
respective reporting dates. Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the respective periods.
Share capital, share premium and reserves are translated at the
exchange rates at the date when the amount were determined
(i.e. historical exchange rate).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform-
Pillar Two model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZ R ERAE]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —Z —=F+_HA=—1+—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —_F_=F+_F=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

2.1

2.2

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments define
accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. The amendments to
HKAS 8 “Accounting policies change in Accounting
Estimates and Error” clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates, and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments narrow the scope
of the recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:
()  the Group has applied the new accounting policy

retrospectively to leasing transactions that occurred
on or after 1 January 2022;

2.
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T REE @

2.1

2.2

HEMAEAGTERFSI (1B5]
7F) Bt NERNTE

FEENRTEEBERRMZIETT R %
FEITREHEFERRS FEFER
FARMARNMBRERNEE SR -7
sTEUR A) BERRTE 308 K 5t E T BABAE
R BHRRNIBEBETFE - RILE
N —RHERERREGLE 5H
EIESHREIINER - BBGHE
ASE8SE TEsth st RIBRZ G FTEUR
BE) (B5]4) BB T GstihstEEA
Bt REBRIERBIEZEHEH| -

FEERBZEEITHEREYHFRE
WHERBRZE -

HERAERAGTERE1258 (25T
T RE-RFEENEERER
MERAREEREN RS

REBAEAFEERERT ZEEE]
RoBRAEBIIABET B ZHERSF
125% TFR18%3 1 5515 K24 R iR {EFR 18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —Z —=F+_HA=—1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

2.2

2.3

SEM Holdings Limited &

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction (Continuead)

(i) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022, recognised a
deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and
a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary difference associated with right-of-use-
assets and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial position and performance,
except that the Group disclose the related deferred
tax assets of HK$149,000 and deferred tax liabilities of
HK$149,000 on a gross basis in Note 17 but it has no
impact on the retained earnings at the earliest period
presented.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure
of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

EERARAT

2.

RN REIE]BERMBRS
20| (TEEMBHREER)) RE

et BEREE @
2.2 HERAEFATERNFE125E (857

2.3

) HAE-RBEENEERER
MEARNEERENZE @

iy RZEZZFE—H—H £&&H
THEAFERAEEERTAESEE
BB R ERRERE
RERRIRERIBEE (g HIR
oA A REBINR 2 EERE
MR ) MIELERIBAE

BT ANERAHAEBNM BRI K
EREEAFE EXAEERMKE7
?ﬁmgégﬁﬁ%m%ﬁﬁiﬁléﬁé

/%75 {8 ﬂaziae%ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁ RE
%,

BV

m%IJ =

HERERAGHERNBIRERER
E?H‘*iﬁiﬁﬁlléi‘*iﬁi%ﬁ)ﬁ (857
r) B BERRBENTE

FEENRTEEBRERAZET L&
BESHENBIRMBREZY) UTE
ARESHAHREMIBARE TEEES
HR) —5 o Bt BEREH R —EE
e M BRMRFTBVEMEN—HZ
B PG ERRAEEE —RARMT
BRREITECRERBEZSIVUHTRRSF
HHPRE > MBS EEREN /BN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tRE M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HlZ—ZT _—F+_HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

2.3 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure
of Accounting Policies (Continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material
to its financial statements. Guidance and examples are
added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —Z —=F+_HA=—1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERHITREEITE HMERE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 20 (EAMBHRSEDN)) RE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN T REE @

OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Change in accounting policy as a result of

24 EREAGMAE ((FEGEM

112

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong

The Group has one subsidiary operating in Hong Kong
which are obliged to pay LSP to employees under certain
circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group makes mandatory
MPF contributions to the trustee who administers the
assets held in a trust solely for the retirement benefits
of each individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against
an employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived from
employers’ MPF contributions was allowed under the
Employment Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the
Government of the HKSAR gazetted the Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset severance payment and LSP (the
“Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect on 1
May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition, under the
Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s salary immediately
preceding the Transition Date (instead of the date of
termination of employment) is used to calculate the portion
of LSP in respect of the employment period before the
Transition Date.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZ R ERAE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HlZ—ZT _—F+_HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERI:TREEITE BIRRE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2R (IEAMFFREEDN)) RE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN et BEREE @

OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

2.4 Change in accounting policy as a result of 24 EREASHMAEEMEAN

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance for the
accounting for the offsetting mechanism and the impact
arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has implemented
the guidance published by the HKICPA in connection with
the LSP obligation retrospectively so as to provide more
reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
the offsetting mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from
employer MPF contributions that have been vested with
the employee and which could be used to offset the
employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by
the employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group
has been applying the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 to account for the deemed employee
contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VAL
7177 O e |

AA TR R B 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —Z —=F+_HA=—1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

2.4 Change in accounting policy as a result of

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong (Continued)

Based on the HKICPA's guidance, as a result of the
Abolition, these contributions are no longer considered
“linked solely to the employee’s service in that period”
since the mandatory employer MPF contributions after the
Transition Date can still be used to offset the pre-transition
LSP obligation. Therefore, it would not be appropriate to
view the contributions as “independent of the number of
years of service” and the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead, these
deemed contributions should be attributed to periods
of service in the same manner as the gross LSP benefit
applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19. Accordingly, the
Group has recognised a cumulative catch-up adjustment
in profit or loss for the service cost, interest expense
and remeasurement effect from changes in actuarial
assumptions for the year ended 31 December 2022,
with corresponding adjustment to the LSP obligation.
The cumulative catch-up adjustment is calculated as the
difference at the enactment date (16 June 2022) between
the carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated under
paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 before the Abolition and
the carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated under
paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19 after the Aboalition.

This change in accounting policy did not have any impact
on the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2022, and
the cash flows amounts for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HlZ—ZT _—F+_HA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN
OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements?
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —Z —=F+_HA=—1+—HILFE

3.

SEM Holdings Limited &

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —_F_=F+_F=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continueqd)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in a subsidiary
Investment in a subsidiary (see Note 31) is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is described in the accounting policy on construction contracts
below.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —Z —=F+_HA=—1+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuea)

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is recognised over time during the course of construction by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction at the
end of the reporting period. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation (i.e. contract costs incurred for work performed to
date) relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation (i.e. total estimated contract costs),
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services.

A performance obligation represents a good or service that
is distinct or a services of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely amount, which
better predicts the amount of consideration contract only to
the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZ R ERAE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —_F_=F+_F=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuead)

The contract assets on construction contracts represent the
Group’s right to consideration for work completed and not billed
as the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance
in satisfying the respective performance obligations. The
contract liabilities on construction contracts represent the
Group’s obligation to transfer electrical and mechanical
engineering services to customers for which the Group has
received consideration from the customers. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for
and presented on a net basis.

Contract asset is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —Z —=F+_HA=—1+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continuea)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —_F_=F+_F=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —Z —=F+_HA=—1+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HlZ—ZT _—F+_HA=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 3. REBEERFEGHEEER

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION #

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE @&

The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBREAEBA @

Lease liabilities (Continued) THEEE @)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a EUATER T AEEEHTERNEAE
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) (L BERERAEEEFERERAR)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the e M